
WASHINGTON STATE 
GAMBLING COMMISSION PUBLIC 

MEETING - August 2018

Pasco Holiday Inn Express
4525 Convention Place 

Pasco, WA 99301



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

P.O. Box 42400 Olympia, Washington 98504-2400  (360)486-3440  (800)345-2529  FAX (360) 486-3625 

Holiday Inn Express and Suites 
4525 Convention Place Pasco, WA 

August 9, 2018 
Please note, agenda times are estimates only.  Items may be taken out of sequence at the discretion of the Chair. 

 
PUBLIC MEETING 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURE ACT PROCEEDINGS 
9:30 AM 

 
 
 
 

Tab 1 
 

Call to Order 
Welcome and Introductions                                                                                   Bud Sizemore, Chair 

• Moment of Silence  
Consent Agenda                                                                                                                          (Action) 

• July 12, 2018 Commission Meeting  
• New Licenses and Class III Employees 

Class III Employees/Snoqualmie & Cowlitz Tribes                                                                (Action) 
 
2018-2022 WSGC Strategic Plan Presentation                                                                        (Action) 
                                                                                                                            David Trujillo, Director 
Director’s Written Report 
 

Tab 2 Columbia Center Rotary Qualification and Program Review                                        
                                                                                                                      Mark Richart, Special Agent 

Tab 3 Default                                                                         Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager                          
Khoa D. Tran, CR 2018-00665, Public Card Room Employee Revocation                                (Action) 
 

Tab 4 
 
 

Big Fish Games, Inc.  Petition for Declaratory Order                                                            (Action) 
                                                                                     Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
                                                                                                     Beth Brinkman, Attorney for Petitioner 
                                                                             Alexander Tievsky, Attorney for Plaintiff Cheryl Kater  
 

12:00 
  
 

Executive Session  -  Closed to the Public   (12:00-1:30) 
Discuss Pending Investigations, Tribal Negotiations, and Litigation 
The public meeting will reconvene at approximately 1:30 pm 

PUBLIC MEETING 
Tab 5 19-21 Biennium Budget Presentation                                                                                       (Action) 

                                                                                                              Cam Dightman, Budget Specialist 
 

Tab 6 
 

Sports Gambling Presentation 
                                                                                     Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

Tab 7 
 

Agency Request Legislation                
                                                                                     Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager 
 

 Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comments 
 

5:00 Meeting Adjourn 
Upon advance request, the Commission will pursue reasonable accommodations to enable persons with disabilities to attend 
Commission meetings. Questions or comments pertaining to the agenda and requests for special accommodations should be 
directed to Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant at (360) 486-3453 or TDD (360) 486-3637. Questions or comments pertaining to 
rule changes should be directed to the Rules Coordinator (360) 486-3447. 



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”  

1 
 

 
July Gambling Commission Meeting Minutes 

The Hotel Murano 
1320 Broadway Plaza Tacoma, WA 

Public Meeting  
July 12, 2018 

 
Commissioners Present:                                      
Bud Sizemore, Chair 
Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 
Chris Stearns 
Ed Troyer  
Alicia Levy 

Ex Officio Members Present:  
Senator Steve Conway 
 

Staff Present: 
Amy Hunter, Deputy Director; Brian Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager; Julie Lies, 
Tribal Liaison; Julie Anderson, Executive Assistant and John Meader, Assistant Attorney 
General.  
 
 
Executive Session Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the July Gambling Commission Meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The 
Chair announced that they would be going immediately into Executive Session where they will 
discuss pending investigations, tribal negotiations and litigation for 1 ½ hours until 11:30. The 
remainder ½ will be dedicated to closed session to discuss stay of summary suspension matter 
and/or petition for declaratory order RCW 42.30.140 with an estimated time of completion of 
noon. 
 
Public Session Call to Order 
Chair Bud Sizemore called the Gambling Commission meeting to order at 12:25 p.m. after 
Executive Session and a short break. Chair Sizemore asked for a moment of silence to 
recognize law enforcement officers across the country that were lost in the line of duty since we 
last met. 
Chair Sizemore welcomed everyone to the Hotel Murano and thanked everyone for coming. He 
introduced the commissioners and Ex Officio Senator Conway.  
 
There were 47 people in attendance.  
 
Tab 1 
Consent Agenda: 
Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the consent agenda as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Stearns seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 5:0  
 



2 
 

Commissioner Patterson moved to approve the Snoqualmie Tribe and Cowlitz Tribe of Indians 
Class III Gaming Employees Certifications as presented. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  
 
Tab 2 
Petition for Review of Summary Suspension Initial Order 
Chair Sizemore introduced Greg Rosen, Senior Counsel for the Washington State Attorney 
General’s office. AAG Rosen representing the Gambling Commission staff in the case involving 
Gregory P. Means of Federal Way, license number 68-07011 and case number CR2017-01110.  
At the Gambling Commission’s June meeting, Gregory P. Means requested a continuance, which 
the commissioners, based on the lack of availability of the counsel. Commissioner Troyer 
recused himself from the deliberations.  
 
At the July Gambling Commission Meeting the Commissioners heard from Bryan G. 
Hershman, Attorney at Law for Gregory P. Means. He handed out four copies of a Declaration 
of Gregory P. Means and presented his case. AAG Rosen presented staff’s case. The four 
Commissioners deliberated in a separate room. The Commissioners reconvened after 10 minutes.  

Chair Sizemore explained that the Commissioners’ review is to be limited to the record; 
therefore, they would not be considering the Declaration of Mr. Means.  He explained the 
Commissioners’ decision is to uphold the ALJ’s initial order denying Gregory Means’ request 
to stay the summary suspension of his Public Card Room Employee License based on the 
record and findings in the initial order. 
He explained that Commissioner Troyer recused himself.  
 
Tab 3 
Defaults                                                                                  
Staff Attorney, Haylee Mills presented the default materials.  

1) Jordan S. Hjorth, CR 2018-00405, Class III Employee Certification Revocation.  
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Jordan S. Hjorth was in the audience. He was not.  

Commissioner Patterson moved to revoke the Class III Certification for Jordan S. Hjorth. 
Commissioner Levy seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 4:0 
Commissioner Stearns abstained.  
 

2) Loren G. Maxey, CR 2018-00263, Public Card Room License Revocation. 
Chair Sizemore asked if Mr. Loran G. Maxey was in the audience. He was not.  

Commissioner Levy moved to revoke the Public Card Room License for Mr. Loren G. Maxey. 
Commissioner Patterson seconded the Motion.  
The Motion passed. 5:0 
 
 



3 
 

Tab 9 
Petition for Declaratory Order- Big Fish  
Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine presented the materials for this tab. Mr. 
Considine gave a brief overview of the Kater v. Churchill Downs  Ninth Circuit Court of 
Appeals case that led to the petition coming before the Commission.  Churchill Downs, Inc. 
previously owned Big Fish Games online casino website and the Ninth Circuit found that the 
allegations made by the Plaintiff Ms. Kater met the definition of gambling under Washington 
State’s definition of “thing of value.”  The Ninth Circuit sent the case back to federal district 
court in Seattle for further action and the case is not finished yet.  Mr. Considine identified that 
the petition asks the Commission to issue a declaratory order finding its games are not gambling 
under Washington State law.  There were two letters in support of the petition and one letter 
opposing the petition asserting that Ms. Kater is a necessary party to this petition, and she does 
not consent to the Commission issuing a declaratory order. 

Ms. Beth Brinkman from Covington & Burling LLP, represented the petitioner, Big Fish 
Games. Ms. Brinkman gave a summary of the petition, and addressed the three letters that were 
filed. The commissioners received a copy of these letters in their packets. She explained that the 
declaratory order confirms that Big Fish Games, Casino Games are not gambling because their 
virtual tokens cannot be redeemed for real money, they have no real world value and their terms 
of use expressly prohibit the transfer or resale for commercial gain.  
Commissioner Troyer asked a series of questions related to the game play, ability to purchase 
more virtual chips/tokens, and the ability for minors to play these games.  Commissioner Troyer 
mentioned that he and the other commissioners would like to learn more about this before 
making a decision. He suggested a couple months to learn more about this process before any 
decisions are made.  
Commissioner Stearns asked how long these games have been in existence, and has any other 
jurisdictions had any issues with them. Ms. Brinkman explained that in 2013 these social games 
were already in circulation. Senator Conway asked if Ms. Brinkman was aware that the 
Washington State Legislature has been looking at this issue for some time and has not taken 
action on it. He also wanted to know what other states are doing regarding social online gaming 
and what states have taken any kind of action on this as a legislature. Chair Sizemore asked for 
clarification on the letter where the plaintiff lost thousands of dollars and was unable to recover.  
 Mr. Considine thanked the commissioners for their time and consideration on this matter. Chair 
Sizemore called for public comment. 
 
Public Comment 
Alexander Tievsky, counsel for Cheryl Kater addressed the commission. He stated the reasons 
why they sued Churchill Downs is because they used to own Big Fish. Big Fish has since been 
sold to an Australian gambling machine manufacturer for $950 million. Mr. Tievsky said that his 
client, Ms. Kater, lost more than $10,000 playing this game. Also, another client Adrian Benson 
from Spokane, Washington lost $3,000 playing a similar game. He explained that these games 
are extremely addictive. He gave the commissioners a name of a book on addictive behaviors 
called Addiction by Design. In closing he offered to answer any questions the commission has.  
Commissioner Stearns asked Mr. Tievsky to clarify an earlier statement which he indicated that 
the game manufacturer designed this game to be addictive. Mr. Tievsky answered, yes, 



4 
 

absolutely. Commissioner Stearns asked if he thought the slot machines are designed to addictive 
too. Mr. Tievsky answered yes, that the company that owns Big Fish Casino makes slot 
machines. It's the same. Same people, same science. 

Cyrus Ansari, from Davis Wright Tremaine representing Mr. Joe Sigrist, General Manager of 
DoubleDown Interactive. DoubleDown is a video game development company, headquartered 
and incorporated in this state, and they make social online games similar to the Big Fish games. 
Mr. Sigrist gave a brief comment. He explained that he has been in the industry for 10 years and 
is located in the Seattle area and would like to offer his company and staff as a resource for the 
commission if they want it.  
Commissioner Troyer asked about the types of games at DoubleDown Casino.  Mr. Sigrist 
explained that at DoubleDown Casino, they offer casino-style games such as, poker, video poker, 
blackjack, and slots. As is the case with this industry, slots is the predominantly played game 
within the category worldwide. He says that it's a $4 billion category, mobile and online gaming 
category worldwide, and a large percentage of that comes through the play of slots which seem 
to be exciting for players to play online. He also said that there are no specific limits. 
 
Mr. Considine reiterated to the commissioners their options under the Administrative Procedure 
Act and agency rule, including that a decision did not need to be made today. Chair Sizemore 
announced that the commissioners would be in deliberation now and will return in 10-15 
minutes.  
 
Chair Sizemore announced that in the matter of the petition of Big Fish Games Inc. for a 
declaratory order, the commissioners will be signing an order continuing review of the petition 
for declaratory order. He explained the order would state: this petition came on for review before 
the undersigned commissioners of the Washington State Gambling Commission at the 
commission's regular scheduled meeting on July 12th in Tacoma, Washington. The commission 
reviewed and considered the petition, comments by the petitioner and staff, and any written or 
oral comments by the public. The commission finds that it needs additional time to review the 
petition and allow for additional public comment, therefore, it is ordered that review of the 
petition for a declaratory order in this matter be continued and scheduled for further review and 
consideration at the Washington State Commission’s August 9th and 10th, 2018 commission 
meeting in Pasco, Washington. Chair Sizemore stated that if anyone is interested in providing 
any additional information to the commission they have until the week before the commission 
meeting, August 2-3, 2018. They can submit their information to Brian Considine.  
 
Tab 4 
Cowlitz Indian Tribe Phase II 
Deputy Director Amy Hunter introduced Special Agent Keith Kam. SAS Kam introduced 
himself and he introduced members of the Cowlitz Tribal Indian Council that were in the 
audience. Council member, Katherine Iyall-Vasqueza; Chair of the Cowlitz Tribal Gaming 
Commission, Chair Jerry Iyall; Public Safety Director and Commissioner, Don Walkinshaw Sr.; 
Treasurer, Greg Ford; Attorney Ed Fleisher; representatives from the Cowlitz Tribal Gaming 
Agency: Executive Director Dick Kellogg, Assistant Director Paul Dasaro, and Assistant 
Director Kim VanCleave. From the ilani operations Kara Fox-LaRose, who is the President and 
General Manager, and Jeff Walker, Vice President of Gaming at ilani Casino. He also introduced 
Special Agent Adam Carolus, the lead agent assigned to the Phase II review. SAS Kam 



5 
 

introduced the Chairman of the Cowlitz Indian Tribe, Chairman Bill Iyall, to make his 
presentation.  
Senator Conway asked how many people are employed at ilani Casino. Chairman Iyall stated 
that there are 1150 approximately in ilani operations, and then another approximately 300 in the 
restaurants that are in ilani, and the tribe owns three of those restaurants. They are approaching 
1500 employees in that facility. 
Commissioner Stearns said that ilani Casino is really doing amazing things and he thanked 
Chairman Iyall for his good work.  
 
Commissioner Levy moved to approve the Cowlitz Indian Tribe to continue operating Phase II limits as 
presented by staff. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5:0 
 
Tab 5 
FY 2019 Budget Revisions 
Deputy Director, Amy Hunter introduced Budget Specialist, Cam Dightman. Mr. Dightman 
presented the materials for this tab. The commissioners didn’t have any questions for Mr. 
Dightman.  
 
Commissioner Levy moved to approve the FY 19 Budget Revisions as presented by staff. 
Commissioner Troyer seconded the motion. 
The motion passed 5:0 
 
Tab 6 
Electronic Gaming Lab Presentation 
Deputy Director, Amy Hunter introduced the Lab Administrator, Melissa Valencia. Ms. Valencia 
presented the materials for this tab. Ms. Valencia explained that the Electronic Gambling Lab is 
a sub-unit of the Washington State Gambling Commission's IT department. The lab is the unit 
responsible for technical evaluation and analysis of electronic gambling equipment. They are the 
agency's subject matter experts on electronic gaming. The Lab continues to improve their 
processing time for submissions. She shared that James Maida, the founder of Gaming 
Laboratories, Inc., an independent testing lab, said that the Commission’s testing lab processes 
submissions more quickly than any other regulatory agency. 
 
Senator Conway asked specifically about testing equipment and identifying that equipment can 
also be software. Ms. Valencia explained that the Lab tests the equipment/software to make sure 
the payouts reach is meeting the state requirements.  
Chair Sizemore asked about overtime, to which Ms. Valencia replied there hasn’t been any 
overtime lately.  
 
Tab 7 
Tribal Compact Contribution Presentation 
Deputy Director Amy Hunter introduced Special Agent Supervisors Dan Wegenast and Kelly 
Main. She also introduced Agent in Charge of the Tribal Gaming Unit, Cathy Harvey in the 
audience. SAS Wegenast explained the Tribal-State Compacts require certain contributions by 
the tribes for community impact, charitable problem, problem gambling and smoking cessation. 
The Tribal Gaming Unit’s staff works with the tribes and verifies the numbers that are 
contributed every year. SAS Wegenast shared information about the community impacts as well 



6 
 

as the charitable contributions.  SAS Main covered the smoking cessation/ problem gambling 
contributions. They shared examples of the organizations that had received these funds and the 
total amounts contributed. 
 
Tab 8 
Legislative Update /Agency Request Legislation 
Legal and Legislative Manager Brian Considine presented the materials for this tab. At the July 
2018 commission meeting, commissioners discussed six possible topics for agency request 
legislation. The six topics that were discussed are:  

• Problem Gambling Self-Exclusion Program;  
• Problem Gambling Task Force;  
• Problem Gambling Prevalence Study;  
• Skins/Loot Boxes;  
• Involuntary Exclusion from Gambling Establishments for People who Commit Certain 

Crimes or Acts (suggested by staff); and  
• General Fund appropriation for Gambling Commission’s criminal enforcement activities. 

 
After the discussion, the majority of the remaining commissioners agreed to not file agency 
request legislation for the 2019 legislative session. Commissioner Stearns stated his continued 
preference for a problem gambling study. Commissioners Patterson and Levy were not at the 
meeting during the agency request legislation discussion so Mr. Considine agreed to speak with 
them regarding the six topics to see if they wished to move any of them forward during the 2019 
legislative session.   
 
Other Business/General Discussion/Public Comment 
Commissioner Stearns announced that July 31, 2018 would be Ann Gray’s last day with the 
Department of Social and Health Services, Behavioral Health. She will be going back into the 
education system, working on a dual language program that includes Latino-Hispanic programs 
for students. 
  
Victor Mena, President of the RGA and Chief Operating Officer for the Washington Gold 
Casinos, said he wanted to share some thoughts about the self-exclusion bill discussion. He said 
that even if the tribal governments decide to participate, the fact that you have so many pull-tab 
licenses is challenging, especially with the technology piece.  He explained a lot of the tavern 
owners might not have the wherewithal to bring in that equipment. He said he hoped that there is 
some serious consideration as to how this would be funded from the commission. If there were a 
possible funds sweep from forfeiture, etc. that would be a big challenge. He said this was just 
some commentary to think about.  
 
Chair Sizemore reminded the audience that the next Commission Meeting will be held at the 
Holiday Inn Express, in Pasco, Washington.  
 
Public Comment 
There was no public comment. 
The Commission meeting adjourned at 4:30 pm. 
 



















































STRATEGIC PLAN
2018-2022

Washington State

GAMBLING
COMMISSION

Protect the public by ensuring that gambling is legal and honest.



2

Table of Contents
 
Introduction 3

Message from Commissoin Chair Bud Sizemore 3

Message from Director Dave Trujillo 3

Meet our Commissioners 4

Organizational Structure 5

Mission 5

Vision 5

Values 5

Accomplishments from our 2014-2018 Strategic Plan 6

Commission Business Initiatives 6

Commission Goals for 2018-2022 9

Goal 1: Increase the Commission’s role in helping people who are suffering from 
gambling disorders 10

Goal 2: Strengthen legislative relationships 11

Goal 3: Staff continuity and succession planning 12

Goal 4: Strengthen stakeholder relationships 13

Assessement of External Challenges and Opportunities 14

Technology 14

Government 14

Government-to-Government Relationships with Tribes 14

Market Trends 14

State Economy 14

Assessment of Internal Capacity and Financial Health 15

Internal Capacity 15

Financial Health 15



3

Introduction

This Strategic Plan is both the commissioners’ and staff’s plan. The Strategic Plan provides the agency leadership 
agenda for the next five years. The agency director’s job is to lead the formulation of the plan and then lead its overall 
implementation.

Strategic planning is “the process of identifying and aligning the significant factors within an organization’s control in 
order to more effectively accomplish its mission in the face of environmental factors that are not within its control.” It 
is comprehensive, significant, and forward-looking.

As part of the process of preparing this plan, the Commission conducted a SWOT analysis. SWOT is an acronym that 
stands for Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats. A SWOT analysis is an organized list of the Commission’s 
greatest strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats.

Strengths and weaknesses are internal to the agency. We can change them over time but not without some work. 
Opportunities and threats are external. They are out there in the market, happening whether we like it or not. We 
cannot change them.

The commissioners met with agency leadership to formulate goals for the Commission to accomplish over the course 
of the next five years. These goals are the major initiatives the Commission must undertake to accomplish its mission.
To accomplish these goals, the commissioners defined a number of objectives with a series of tactics to implement 
these objectives.

Message from Commission Chair Bud Sizemore

Strategic planning is an arduous but necessary component of successful organizations. The 
investment of both thought and heart by staff leaders and commissioners while preparing this 
Strategic Plan is a testament to this agency’s desire to be an industry leader. We have laid out some 
aggressive goals, and as always, our success is dependent on the work of our very competent staff 
and ongoing support of the Commission. I am very confident in this agency accomplishing what it 
sets out to do, and pledge the support of each and every commissioner!

Message from Director Dave Trujillo

I am pleased to present the Washington State Gambling Commission’s Strategic Plan for 2018-
2022. The plan sets forth the agency’s long-term strategic goals for meeting new and challenging 
issues, while meeting its public safety mission to protect the public by ensuring gambling is legal 
and honest. It also identifies factors outside the agency’s control that could potentially affect goal 
achievement. The strategic plan describes the objectives and tactics that will be employed in pursuit 
of the long-term goals. The agency will pursue the short-term objectives and tactics through an 
annual implementation plan established each year by the agency’s Leadership Team. Progress on 
achievement of the goals within the strategic plan will be reported periodically to commissioners, 
and a progress report will be presented to the Commission at a public meeting after each fiscal 
year ends. 

For 45 years, the agency has carried out its public safety mission, maintained public confidence, and remained 
committed to government-to-government relations with our Washington tribal partners. This strategic plan will set 
the foundation for the next 45 years. 



4

Meet our Commissioners

Bud Sizemore, Chair
Commissioner Sizemore is a former Mayor Pro Tempore and member of the Covington City 
Council, and Legislative Liaison for the Washington State Council of Fire Fighters. He is currently a 
fire fighter with the Kent Fire Department Regional Fire Authority.

Term Expires: Jun 30, 2019

Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair
Commissioner Patterson is a former member of the Metropolitan King County Council, 
Washington State Senate, Washington State House of Representatives and the SeaTac City 
Council. Her public service career spans 24 years.

Term Expires: Jun 30, 2024

Chris Stearns, Commissioner
Commissioner Stearns is an attorney specializing in Indian law. He previously served four years 
as Counsel to the U.S. House Committee on Natural Resources and was the first-ever Director 
of Indian Affairs for the U.S. Department of Energy. He is also the past Chairman of the Seattle 
Human Rights Commission.

Term Expires: Jun 30, 2021

Ed Troyer, Commissioner
Commissioner Troyer has been with the Pierce County Sheriff’s Department for over 30 years and 
is their Media Relations and Public Information Officer. He is also the Executive Director of Pierce 
County Crime Stoppers and Board Chair of TAPCO Credit Union.

Term Expires: Jun 30, 2020

Alicia Levy, Commissioner
Commissioner Levy is an attorney specializing in business law, estate planning and real estate 
law. She completed her undergraduate work at Washington State University in 2003 and 
graduated from Gonzaga University School of Law in 2010. Commissioner Levy gained experience 
working in larger law firms in the region before starting her own firm in Spokane in 2015.

Term Expires: Jun 30, 2023



5

Organizational Structure

The Washington State Gambling Commission (WSGC) is an accredited, limited-jurisdiction law enforcement agency 
and the only statewide agency devoted to gambling licensing, regulation and enforcement.

Through collaboration with local, state, federal, tribal and international law enforcement agencies, we work to fulfill 
the legislative declaration of: (1) Keeping the criminal element out of gambling, and (2) Promoting social welfare 
through strict regulation and control.

The Commission is composed of five commissioners appointed by the Governor to six-year terms. The Commission 
holds regular public meetings, makes policy and budget decisions and takes action on administrative matters. Four 
members of the Legislature serve as ex-officio members and vote to approve or amend tribal-state Class III gaming 
compacts. They play an important liaison role between the Commission and the Legislature.

Led by the Director, who is appointed by the Commission, the WSGC has approximately 114 full-time employees 
at the Commission’s headquarters in Lacey, WA, two regional offices in Spokane and Renton, and in home-based 
offices. The WSGC staff is split between Administration and Operations. Administration oversees two divisions, 
Human Resources and Business Operations. Administration also oversees Tribal Negotiations and the Tribal Liaison. 
Operations oversees two divisions and two units, the Licensing, Regulation and Enforcement Division, Information 
Technology Division, Tribal Gaming Unit and the Professional Standards and Training Unit, to accomplish the WSGC’s 
mission and support the Commission’s vision.

Mission 

Protect the public by ensuring that gambling is legal and honest.

Vision

We will maintain public confidence by:

• Conducting a fair and effective gambling regulatory and enforcement program.

• Investigating illegal activities.

• Building positive partnerships and relationships.

• Providing a workplace that allows employees to excel at their jobs.

• Anticipating and responding to the evolving gambling industry.

Values

We value integrity, professionalism, respect, and diversity.



6

Accomplishments from our 2014 - 2018 Strategic Plan

The Commission’s 2014-2018 Strategic Plan identified 18 projects designed to support the Commission’s five goals. 
These goals were: 1) detect and remove the criminal element from gambling; 2) maintain a regulatory environment 
that promotes compliance; 3) develop, retain, and value our employees; 4) provide accurate and timely information 
to the Legislature, public, and other stakeholders; and 5) pursue improvements and innovations in agency programs 
and processes.

Significant progress was made on each of these projects. Of the 18 total projects; 12 were completed, 2 were 
determined not to be needed, 3 are still in process, and one has been deferred. The execution of these projects was 
the result of many hours of work by the dedicated Commission staff and reflect the commitment of staff to fulfill the 
Commission’s mission to “protect the public by ensuring that gambling is legal and honest.”

Commission Business Initiatives

The following infographic illustrates the various business initiatives that the Commission is engaged in currently 
and for the next several years. It serves to demonstrate that the Commission is a multi-facetted organization that is 
continually evolving to serve the needs of its stakeholders. Ultimately, it shows that the Commission truly embraces 
its mission “to protect the public by ensuring that gambling is legal in honest.” 



HIRING A GAMBLING SPECIAL AGENT:  5 - 6 Month Process | 7 Vacant Positions: Feb 2018

WSGC BUSINESS INITIATIVES

 

Info on Website

Secure Data

Mobile Apps
for Agents

Migrate to DOR’s
Business License

System

Digitize Licensing
Records

Update Licensee
Training

Consultation:
Tribal Relations Policy

TGA Director
Visits

Governor’s
Office

Negotiations

Lab
Communications

Plan

Lab Info
on Portal

APPLICATION PRE-SCREEN INTERVIEWPHYSICAL ABILITIES
TESTING

POLYGRAPH PSYCHOLOGICAL
EXAM

NEW AGENT
TRAINING

FINAL
JOB OFFER

22 New Hires, 16 Separations:  Jan 2017 - Feb 2018

of supervisors are
new to the role

TRAINING
AND

RETENTION

Supervisor
Training

Staff
Development

Benefits
& Pay

Emergency
Preparedness

Staffing
Levels

Cross
Training

Technology
Training

Training
Committee

FOCUSED ON STAKEHOLDERS

Consultation:
Tribal Billing

CONDITIONAL
JOB OFFER

Fee Simplification
(27 Project Sub-Teams)

Modernize Info Management Systems

Increase Criminal Case Clearance Rate

Re-establish Intelligence Unit

Launch Money Laundering Initiative

36%

16 Vacancies as of Feb 2018

C
O

M
MER

CIAL / 
NON-PROFIT

 
   

 

 

 
 

TRIBES

WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Headquarters Restack

Problem Gambling

IN

OUT



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION

Ensuring gambling is legal & honest 

overdue
submissions
in 20170

REGULATION & ENFORCEMENTLICENSING
The Licensing Unit processes more than 20,000 
gambling licenses and certi�cations each year. To 
determine if new and current businesses are 
quali�ed to hold a gambling license, WSGC sta�:

1) conduct criminal background checks on nearly 
everyone involved in the business, and

2) source funds to ensure money is from a legitimate 
sources without ties to criminal activities

TRIBAL GAMING UNIT
Under state law, our director is responsible for 
negotiating Class III gaming compacts. All 29 
federally recognized tribes in Washington have a 
gaming compact, with 27 casinos in operation.
 16 tribes operate one casino each
 4 tribes operate two casinos each
 1 tribe operates three casinos
We have a cooperative regulatory partnership with 
tribal gaming agencies, and provide on-site 
monitoring of Tribal-State compact terms. Each year, 
we provide new agent training  for approximately 60 
tribal gaming agency employees.

WSGC agents enforce state gambling laws 
and rules for licensed and unlicensed 
activities, and also conduct undercover 
investigations into gambling activities that 
are illegal in Washington.

CASE EXAMPLE:  Regulation Unit agents 
arrested two licensed card room employees 
who conspired to cheat by prearranging 
decks of cards and placing them into the 
output of the shu�e machine instead of the 
input. The loss to the two casinos was 
approximately $56,000. The suspects were 
charged with, and pleaded guilty to, 
cheating.

CASE EXAMPLE:  Criminal Enforcement Unit 
agents investigated multiple cases of 
�nancial exploitation involving elderly 
victims, two of which were featured in a news 
story by KOMO TV on elder abuse. In both 
cases, the suspects withdrew money from 
the victims’ bank accounts using cash 
machines at local casinos. Charges of theft in 
the �rst degree were referred to the 
prosecutor’s o�ce.

ELECTRONIC GAMBLING LAB WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF SHERIFFS &
POLICE CHIEFS ACCREDITED AGENCY
Our agency completed the 
Washington Association of 
Sheri�s & Police Chiefs’  
re-accreditation process in 2018 
and received a re-accreditation 
award at WASPC’s annual 
conference in Spokane. WSGC 
received its original WASPC 
accreditation in 2014.

TRAINING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES & LICENSEES
Law Enforcement Academy Recruits:
Illegal Gambling; Blue-on-Blue Shootings 466

Non-Pro�t Licensees:
How to Conduct Gambling Activities 454

Commercial Licensees:
How to Conduct Gambling Activities 46
Anti Money Laundering Regulations  80

Number of trainees July 1, 2017 - May 1, 2018

New Applications Processed  3,523
Renewals Processed    13,309
Criminal History Checks Conducted 18,903
Licenses Revoked    29
New Applicants Who Didn’t Qualify, 126
Withdrew or Submitted Incomplete
Application     
Period:  July 1, 2017 - May 1, 2018

On-site Visits     781
Violations Found    224
Repeat Violations    28
Complaints Received   72
Average Days to Respond   0.51
to Complaints
    Period:  July 1, 2017 - May 1, 2018

Theft  (83)

Cheating  (59)

Operating Without a License  (37)

Operational Violations  (5)

Fraud, Forgery, Counterfeiting  (16)

Illegal Gambling Devices, Gambling  (12)

Other  (62)

Money Laundering  (28%)

Drug Activities  (19%)

Bookmaking  (16%)

Elder Abuse  (5%)

Sports Wagering  (5%)

Other  (27%)

2017 Regulation Unit Investigations

2017 Criminal Enforcement Unit Investigations

CASES

274

CASE
LOAD %



9

Commission Goals for 2018 - 2022

1. Increase the Commission’s role in helping people who are suffering from gambling 
disorders.
The Commission desires to take a more proactive role in helping those in Washington State suffering from 
gambling related disorders in conjunction with the industry and behaviorial health professionals.

2. Strengthen legislative relationships.
The Commission has maintained a positive relationship with the state Legislature. We are looking for ways to 
strengthen that relationship by making more policy recommendations on gambling topics and issues.

3. Staff continuity and succession planning.
The Commission has a dedicated and talented workforce that provides for efficient agency operations. Our 
workforce is continually evolving because of new hires or employees leaving the Commission to seek other 
opportunities or to enjoy retirement. We must plan for changes to ensure operations continue to run smoothly. 
We must also plan for the next generation of leaders in the Commission.

4. Strengthen stakeholder relationships.
The Commission wants to develop and maintain strong relationships with its various stakeholders, such as 
Tribes, licensees, and gambling equipment manufacturers.



10

Goal 1:  Increase the Commission’s role in helping people who are suffering from gambling 
disorders

Objectives Tactics

1. Complete and present problem gambling 
study to Legislature in February 2019 that 
looks at ensuring those who need treatment 
receive treatment in Washington

• Secure funding for the study.

• Present study to Legislature no later than February 
15, 2019.

2. Increase public awareness around problem 
gambling

• Update agency problem gambling literature.

• Post agency problem gambling literature 
prominently on our website.

• Bring awareness to problem gambling events 
occurring in our state during Problem Gambling 
Awareness month and at other times, as needed.

• Partner with the Horse Racing Commission and the 
Lottery Commission on problem gambling outreach 
efforts.

3. Seek additional funding for problem 
gambling awareness and focus prevention 
of problem gambling on minors and youths

• Obtain funding through Legislative action beginning 
after 2019.

• Depending on 2019 Problem Gambling study 
results; seek additional funds through Tribal 
negotiations.

• Work with the appropriate state agency to account 
for current problem gambling revenue stream 
received from the state’s Business and Occupation 
tax.

• Depending on 2019 Problem Gambling study 
results, have an Awareness Study related to minors 
and youth.

• Develop problem gambling literature targeted 
towards minors and youths.

4. Explore the option of revising RCW 9.46 
to increase  agency  problem gambling 
responsibility

• Determine if agency request legislation is needed to 
clarify Commission’s problem gambling role and, if 
so prepare, agency request legislation.

5. Involve all stakeholders in problem 
gambling processes, e.g. Tribes, licensees, 
health care professionals etc.

• Depending on the results of the 2019 study, 
the Commission may be involved in a statewide 
problem gambling taskforce.

• Provide opportunities for Tribal and non-Tribal 
operators to share information on their problem 
gambling programs.

• Develop a Self-Exclusion program that can be 
applied to Tribal and non-tribal gambling sectors.



11

Goal 2:  Strengthen legislative relationships

Objectives Tactics

1. Prepare an annual report to the Legislature 
about Commission activities

• Assemble staff/stakeholder workgroup with cross 
representation to prepare legislative report in 
advance of the 2020 legislative session and annually 
thereafter.

• Publish fiscal year end annual report on the 
Commission website beginning in 2019.

• Update annual legislative media brochure with 
Commission activity highlights.

2. Share emerging issues and solutions 
through white paper process

• Sports betting, loot boxes and skins gambling are 
topics that staff are working on.  

• Form internal team to keep abreast of emerging 
issues, determine what issues to focus on, and 
forecast topics for lawmakers.

• Seek Legislative input on topics.

3. Build coalitions and involve stakeholders in 
presenting information to the Legislature

• Hold periodic meetings that facilitate 
communications between public, Legislature, Tribes, 
licensees and other stakeholders.

4. Encourage Legislative committees to hold 
educational work sessions

• Once white whitepapers are written, share with 
Legislature; and seek annual educational works 
sessions.

• Commission legislative team will monitor gambling 
related bills dropped and determine how best to 
educate lawmakers on the subject.

• Better utilize Commission Ex Officios as a resource.

5. Develop position for general fund 
appropriations for criminal enforcement 
work

• Engage Tribes, licensees, and law enforcement in 
support of general fund appropriations for criminal 
enforcement work.



12

Goal 3:  Staff continuity and succession planning

Objectives Tactics

1. Establish agency leadership pathways • Reevaluate prior Leadership Development 
Program and consider reinstating it and provide 
opportunities for staff to determine if they want to 
pursue leadership.

• Provide opportunities for staff to get a feel for 
leadership through job shadowing, participating 
on agency teams, and being involved with external 
organizations.

• Cross train staff where appropriate.

• Develop individual training plans that support 
opportunities for leadership development.

2. Evaluate each division for potential 
leadership transitions and identify staff 
that can take over and plan for “back-up” on 
key positions

• Identify staff who may be leaving for retirement 
or other opportunities and determine the future 
vacancies to be filled.

• Have conversations with staff regarding their goals.

• Provide cross training.

• Update job requirements, including competencies, 
for key positions.

3. Understand that not all great employees 
want to be leaders

• Provide training opportunities for staff that want to 
be subject matter and technical experts and do not 
have the desire to be supervisors.

• Talk to staff about their goals and what motivates 
them.

• Retain people where they are successful as subject 
matter experts.

4. Be employer of choice • Highlight state and agency benefits during 
recruitment and stress what this agency offers, such 
as flexible schedules, telework opportunities, etc.

• Where feasible, provide for a flexible and modern 
work environment.

• Develop methods to reach a diverse pool of job 
candidates.

• Provide meaningful recognition to staff.



13

Goal 4:  Strengthen stakeholder relationships

Objectives Tactics

1. Improve Tribal billing system and Tribal 
Relations policy

• Conduct formal and informal Tribal consultation 
meetings.

• Use WIGA (Washington Indian Gaming Association) 
to help share information and identify workgroup 
members.

• Build relationships with Tribal Gaming Commissions, 
Tribal Gaming Agencies, casino operations, and 
others.

2. Utilize stakeholders & other experts when 
presenting information

• Send staff to, or request to have a representative at, 
licensee trade organization meetings.

• Increase visits to state non-profit conventions.

• Provide the ability for stakeholders to add 
Commission meeting agenda topics on emerging 
gambling issues.

3. Obtain feedback on fee simplification from 
stakeholders

• Conduct online surveys, town hall meetings, as well 
as talk to individual licensees to gauge effectiveness 
of fee simplification on stakeholders.

• Follow Tribal consultation process to obtain 
feedback from Tribal stakeholders.

4. Work on raffle rules and build better 
relationships with non-profits

• Identify the changes the agency is willing to accept/
consider.

• Determine scope of any potential rule changes.

• Identify staff who are subject matter experts to work 
on raffle rule project.

5. Coordinate a gambling summit to discuss 
various gambling related topics

• Follow a process similar to Tribal consultation to 
prepare a summit that includes entire gaming 
industry.

• Engage stakeholders and ask them to contribute 
ideas for the summit.



14

Assessment of External Challenges and Opportunities

There are many factors outside of the Commission’s control that have significant impacts on the Commission’s 
ability to complete its mission. After conducting a SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, and Threats) 
analysis, the Commission identified the following external factors that are expected impact the Commission over 
the next five years:

Technology
Technology impacts the activity being regulated (gambling) and the tools and methodology used to regulate the 
activity. Changes in technology will be one of the most important factors impacting the Commission’s programs 
over the next few years. Key areas include:

• Innovations in information technology that will change the way we do our work (investigations, monitoring, 
collection and dissemination of public information, communication with licensees and law enforcement);

• Automation of records and reports of regulated activities;

• Advances in Internet technology and the availability of legal and illegal online gambling; and

• Continuous and increasing pressure to allow new technology in gaming activities.

Government
The Commission can be impacted by the decisions of other governmental and judicial bodies. Those that have the 
potential for the greatest impact are:

• Judicial decisions at the state or federal level may interpret the law in a manner that expands or restricts the 
scope of gambling activities in Washington;

• The United States Supreme Court recently ruled that the Professional and Amateur Sports Protection Act of 
1992, also known as PASPA was unconstitutional, which now allows states to legalize sports betting;

• Tax revenues from new or existing gambling activities may be an attractive option for state and local 
governments that need to make up for budgetary shortfalls;  

• Cities and counties may allow or prohibit authorized gambling activities;

• Tribal governments are seeking alternatives to current billing methods and the state’s current regulatory role; 
and

• Litigation is expected to continue or increase related to machine gambling and other regulatory issues.

Government-to-Government Relationships with Tribes
The Commission participates in all Tribal-State Centennial Accord meetings and is committed to consulting with 
tribes on issues that affect our respective governments. The agency will continue to strengthen government-to-
government relationships with each Washington Indian Tribe consistent with the RCW 43.376, the Centennial 
Accord, and the co-regulatory partnership outlined in the Tribal-State Class III Gaming Compacts.

Market Trends
Various market trends impact the Commission’s ability to complete its mission. Among those are:

• Continued pressure from gambling industry competitors to obtain authorization for new forms of electronic 
gambling;

• Tribal casinos are increasingly popular for gambling;

• Illegal and legal gambling equipment and related activities have proliferated; and

• Gambling has increased in popularity among young people.

State Economy
Washington State’s economy continues to grow, and is forecasted to outperform U.S. economic growth over 



15

the next four years. Forecasted revenue growth is not likely to meet current demands on the state’s resources. 
Washington continues to face a structural budget gap because the state’s tax and revenue system does not keep 
pace with the increasing demands for services of a growing population.

Washington’s economy is cyclical, and the current growth cycle will eventually slow. The members of the Governor’s 
Council of Economic Advisors believe the probability of a recession by 2023 to be about 88 percent.

Assessment of Internal Capacity and Financial Health

Internal Capacity
Many factors affect the Commission’s internal capacity and its ability to accomplish its mission, goals, and 
objectives. Among these is the Commission’s ability to:

• Recruit, train, and retain a diverse and knowledgeable workforce;

• Utilize technology to more fully automate business processes;

• Offer online transaction options for our licensees; and

• Maintain up-to-date technology.

Financial Health
Because the Commission is a non-appropriated agency, its financial health is directly related to maintaining 
sufficient revenue and working capital balance to ensure it can cover expenses during periods of revenue 
fluctuation, and absorb any statewide changes such as salary and benefit increases. Therefore, it is critical that 
the Commission ensures an adequate level of funding from its primary revenue sources of license fees and Tribal 
regulation reimbursements.



 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
August 1, 2018 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Lynda Wilson 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer      Representative David Sawyer 
   Alicia Levy      
      
FROM:        David Trujillo, Director  
 
 
SUBJECT: Director’s Report 
 
Remembering Kent Police Department Officer Diego Moreno: 

The Commission was well represented at yesterday’s 
memorial service for fallen officer Diego Moreno.  While 
I did not know Officer Moreno personally, I could not 
help but grow to appreciate who he was as a son, 
husband, father, community member and police officer. 
Officer Moreno was born July 17, 1983 in Caracas, 
Venezuela. His watch ended July 22, 2018.  He served 
eight years with the police department and credited with 

saving three lives.  He saved a drowning boy in 2011, rescued a woman from a burning building 
in 2016 and saved the life of a two year old girl who wasn’t breathing after she was pulled from a 
pond.  He is survived by his wife and their two children. Officer Moreno may be gone but he will 
not be forgotten. 
 
Sports Betting: 
Sports betting has been a featured topic in most, if not all, gaming-related conferences this 
summer and a significant topic at the recent summer conference of the National Council of 
Legislators from Gaming States. There seems to be general agreement that striking down the 
sports betting ban did not affect the 1961 Wire Act which is a barrier to electronic sports betting 
across state lines. NCAA is studying the impact of sports betting on competition and athletes. A 
few examples of how sports betting is evolving in other states – Michigan is looking at 
permitting it with an 8% tax, Ohio is introducing placeholder bills expressing intent to enact 
sports betting, HB 2478 in Pennsylvania is active and would allow sports pools in taverns but 
limited to 100 participants with a maximum entry of $20. Manager Brian Considine will 
continue to provide details of the changing sports betting landscape. 
 

https://www.bing.com/images/search?view=detailV2&ccid=EEVl8myd&id=607289B260A06206BC5B528EA6A25EC6752BFD70&thid=OIP.EEVl8mydVlywRDsTEOM-mwEsCn&mediaurl=http://www.odmp.org/media/image/officer/23727/orig/diego-moreno-e1532321368206.jpg&exph=670&expw=1200&q=diego+moreno+kent+pd&simid=608005687562012804&selectedIndex=0�


Director’s Report 
August 1, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Tribal Gaming: 
In December 2014, we issued a press release (attached) saying 27 of the 29 federally recognized 
Indian Tribes in Washington reached an agreement with us to amend their Compacts. We 
generally refer to this amendment as the X2 Amendment. In actuality only 26 Tribes returned the 
amendment document(s) for Governor’s signature.  In July 2018, we finally received the signed 
amendment documents from the 27th Tribe. The documents were forwarded to us for signature 
by the Governor.  The Governor has signed.  The next step is for the Tribe to forward the 
amendment to the US Department of the Interior for consideration, signature and publication in 
the federal register.  
 
2018 Annual Technology Certification Requirements: 
Each year, agencies are asked to provide information about compliance with selected 
statewide policies and to provide information in support of statewide technology programs. 
Certification requirements include three parts, all due by September 28, 2018.  This year we 
must update our Application Inventory, provide a completed 2018 Annual Agency 
Certification of Compliance (attached) and complete our annual Information Technology 
Security Reporting. While the reporting requirements in 2018 are expected to be similar to 
those in 2017, the Office of Cyber Security is reviewing the budget bill and other recently 
passed legislation to determine if there are additional requirements to include in this year’s 
report. 
 
Fee Structure Simplification Project: 
All applicable rules associated with this project are effective and we implemented the new fee 
structure in July. This “project” has been a significant investment in resources, financially and in 
terms of people. In addition to the reaching out to over 3,000 people referred to last month, Staff 
continue to be very busy making personal contacts. There were 1,337 more (85% increase) in 
activity reports due July 30 which meant staff was very active helping licensees and applicants 
through the process. Of the 2,919 licensee activity reports due on July 30, 2,498 activity reports 
on 86% of them were received on time. About 97% of the activity reports received were 
submitted through My Account. 
. 
Problem Gambling Study (ESSB 6032): 
We have ironed out the contract language and the combined team(s) from UW and WSU are 
engaged in literature review and working on the survey programming.  
 
Strategic Planning: 
We have prepared a draft of the Strategic Plan document. The four goals defined by 
Commissioners are 1) Increase the Commission’s role in helping people who are suffering from 
gambling disorders; 2) Strengthen legislation relationships; 3) Staff continuity and success 
planning; and 4) Strengthen stakeholder relationships. We are presenting the plan for your 
approval this month.  This Strategic Plan is estimated to cover the next four to five years.  
 
Attachments 



Washington State Gambling Commission 
Qualification & Program Review 

Columbia Center Rotary 

Part I 
Licensing/Organization Information 

For Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 2017 

Name/Address 
Columbia Center Rotary 
6222 W. John Day Avenue 
Kennewick, WA  99336 

 

MEMBERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT 

111 Active Voting Members 
4 Officers and 6 Board Members  
15 Board meetings were conducted during the 2016/2017 fiscal year 
48 Club meetings were held during the 2016/2017 fiscal year 
Board member election was held on October 27, 2016 
 

 

ACTIVE LICENSES ISSUED BY GAMBLING COMMISSION 
Description/Class 
Bingo Class H 
Punchboard/Pull Tab Class I 

Exp. Date 
12/31/2018 
12/31/2018 

License Number(s) 
01-02455 
05-07471 

  

Organizational Purpose and Structure 
 

Statement of Purpose 
Rotary International is an organization of service clubs located all over the world.  There are more than 
35,000 clubs in more than 200 countries, and there are over 1.2 million members world-wide.  Columbia 
Center Rotary is a member club of Rotary International. The members of Rotary Clubs are known as 
Rotarians. Their motto is “Service Above Self”. 

 
The stated purpose of the organization is to bring together business and professional leaders to provide 
humanitarian service, encourage high ethical standards in all vocations, and help build goodwill and peace in 
the world.  The Columbia Center Rotary Club members meet each Thursday for lunch, which is a social 
event as well as an opportunity to organize the service work they do locally and around the world. 

 
          Charitable/Nonprofit Services 

The Columbia Center Rotary Club contributed $264,300.00 dollars to various local community and 
international projects and scholarships during the year ending June 30, 2017.  Some examples of the 
projects and scholarships are: Master Gardener Foundation of Benton Franklin Counties, Round About 
Cycling of the Pasco School District, Port of Kennewick, Columbia Gardens Wine & Artisan Village, Tepic 
Paraiso Playground, Belize Classroom, Peru Water Project, Benton-Franklin Head Start, Edith Bishel 
Center for the Blind, Blue Mountain Council of Scouts, Boys & Girls Club of Benton & Franklin County, 
Goodwill Industries, Tri Cities Food bank and 13 student scholarships. 
 
 

 



Part II 
Staff Findings 

 
During our review of the Columbia Center Rotary, numerous steps were taken to ensure they are 
functioning in accordance with their Bylaws and continue to meet the definition of a charitable or 
nonprofit organization under the RCW. This was done in part by reviewing: board meeting minutes, 
program services, financial statements, internal controls, and payroll for reasonable wages, the use 
of funds and assets and contracts for reasonableness.   We verified their program exists and is being 
supported and they made significant progress towards their stated purpose. 
Based on our review we determined the Columbia Center rotary was in compliance with all WACs 
and RCWs during their fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and is suitable for continued licensure. 

 
Prepared By: 

Mark Richart, Special Agent 
Licensing, Regulation, and Enforcement 
Division 

Signature: 

 
Date: 
 

 



 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
 
August 1, 2018 
 
 
TO:  COMMISSIONERS:  
  Bud Sizemore, Chair 
  Julia Patterson, Vice Chair 

Christopher Stearns 
Ed Troyer 
Alicia Levy 

 
FROM: Haylee P. Mills, Staff Attorney  
  Legal and Records Division 

 
SUBJECT:  Khoa D. Tran, CR 2018-00665 
  Final Order – August 9, 2018 Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Khoa D. Tran has a gambling license authorizing Public Card Room Employee activity at 
Great American Casino in Lakewood, Washington.  His license expires on June 3, 2019.   
 
On or about April 28, 2018, Mr. Tran was gambling at Chips Casino in Lakewood when he 
engaged in an argument with another player.  The argument became physical, and after being 
pulled away from the other player, Mr. Tran mimicked a gun with his fingers and pointed the 
“finger gun,” at the other player.  Mr. Tran was then removed from the casino, but returned later 
in the evening, looking for the player with whom he had argued earlier.  As his friends struggled 
to restrain Mr. Tran, he pulled a knife from his pocket and swung it at the casino security manager.  
Mr. Tran’s friends removed him from the casino, but again he pulled the knife from his pocket and 
pointed it at the security manager.  Upon hearing that police had been called to the casino, Mr. 
Tran’s friends struggled to get him into a car and fled the casino.  Once a block away from the 
casino, Mr. Tran exited the vehicle and fled on foot. 
 
Director Trujillo signed a Summary Suspension and Notice of Administrative Charges that was 
sent to Mr. Tran on June 13, 2018 by regular and certified mail to the last address the Gambling 
Commission had on file.  The certified mail was returned on July 11, 2018 as “Unclaimed.”  The 
regular mail was not returned.  As of the date of this memo, the Commission has not received any 
response from Mr. Tran. 
 
Mr. Tran’s failure to respond to the charges or request a hearing is a waiver of Mr. Tran’s right to 
a hearing in Case No. CR 2018-00665.  You may take final action against his gambling license.  
Based on his conduct, Mr. Tran cannot show by clear and convincing evidence that he is qualified 
to keep his gambling license.  Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission sign the proposed 
final order and revoke Khoa D. Tran’s gambling license, License Number 68-32941. 
 
 
 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Dear Commissioners: 
 
I live in Puyallup, Washington. In the last six months, I’ve lost more than $20,000 playing 
Huuuge Casino (one of the most popular “social casino” games, along with Big Fish Casino). 
I’m planning to come to the hearing in Pasco on Thursday to tell you my story, but I wanted to 
send this letter first in case you don’t have time to hear from me in Pasco. 
 
Earlier this year I had back surgery and was laid up on the couch for a couple months. To pass 
the time, I downloaded the Huuuge Casino app. I have a history of casino gambling addiction (at 
the Muckleshoot and the Emerald Queen), and thought that using a “free” online casino would 
help me stop going to the “real” casinos. I thought it could be like Suboxone to a heroin addict or 
Chantix to a smoker. This was supposed to help me, not make me worse off. Boy, was I wrong. 
 
Phone-based “social casino” games like Huuuge Casino are absolutely gambling. When you first 
download the app and start spinning the slots, it seems like everyone wins and plays for free for a 
little while. But after you play for a bit, everyone’s “luck” seems to fade, and you run out of 
chips pretty quickly. Honestly, it seems like they can figure out once you are “hooked,” and then 
they start making you lose so you have to keep buying chips.  
 
At the start, the chip packages they offer cost $.99 or $1.99. But as you play more, the cheapest 
chip packages you can buy get more and more expensive. Within a month of starting to play, the 
cheapest “special” purchase I could make in Huuuge casino was for $99.99. I even created new 
accounts just so I could buy smaller chip packages (instead of ones $99.99 and up). But it 
seemed like as soon as they figured out that the new accounts were connected to my same 
Google or Facebook account, they knew they already had a sucker, so the chip packages got 
expensive and I’d lose quickly. 
 
When I would ask Huuuge to block me from buying any more chips, they said they couldn’t do 
that. I know I should have just stopped myself, but I was hooked. I still don’t understand why 
they couldn’t just block my account. 
 
In my opinion, games like Huuuge are way more addictive than regular casinos. And I know – 
I’ve spent way too much time and money playing the slots at the “real” casinos. But Huuuge is 
worse: all you have to do to start gambling is to take out your phone. It lets me gamble at home, 
at work on breaks, morning, noon, night. I can’t bring the Emerald Queen or the Muckleshoot 
Casino home with me or carry it around in my purse. But I can bring Huuuge with me anywhere. 
It’s just too convenient.  
 
Worse, I am absolutely certain that Huuuge knows once you’re addicted, and changes the odds 
on you (to make you buy more chips) after they figure it out. On top of all that, the whole 
structure of VIP “clubs” adds to the addiction. You have to belong to a club to get any real 
amount of “free” chips. But in the end the clubs are just another way that you get pressured into 
buying more chips because you quickly get kicked out of your club if you aren’t “contributing” 
enough on a daily basis. 
 



This game has ruined me, both financially and emotionally. For months, I sat inside my house 
and did nothing but spin slots inside a phone game I was addicted to. I’ve spent every dollar to 
my name on that stupid game. When I look at my Google purchases and bank statements I am 
just disgusted with myself. But I know that I’m not alone, and I’m hoping that by speaking up I 
might help other people from going through what I have. 
 
Online casinos like Huuuge aren’t anything like normal games – even ones with in-app 
purchases like Candy Crush. Online casino games literally mimic the real casinos, both in terms 
of the look and feel and in terms of the games they offer (slots, roulette, blackjack, etc.). If they 
were not trying to mimic a casino, they wouldn’t be making games that are identical to the same 
ones you find in the casinos. And they even call themselves casinos! Yet they want to say they 
that the games aren’t “gambling.” The truth is that these games are a perfect way for companies 
like Huuuge to lure in the weak and hope to get someone with money. Basically, if it looks like a 
casino, functions like a casino, makes games just like the casino, is named as a casino, takes 
money like a casino, destroys someone financially and emotionally like a casino … then it's a 
casino! 
 
Huuuge Casino, Big Fish Casino, and all the rest of these app companies need to be regulated 
just like regular casinos. And they need to be responsible for addiction counseling for the 
people—like me—who they have preyed upon and ruined.  
 
I look forward to telling you more about my experience next week. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
P.M. 
48 year old resident of Puyallup, WA 
 



2019-21 Budget
August 9, 2018

Cam Dightman, Budget Specialist
Business Operations Division



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2

Agenda

1. FY18 Final Results
2. FY19 Approved Budget
3. Proposed Budget for 2019-21 Biennium

• 2019-21 Estimated Revenue
• 2019-21 Proposed Expenditures
• Working Capital Balance Estimates

4. Staff Recommendation: 2019-21 Budget



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3

FY18 Final Results

Estimate Actual Variance

Revenue $12,370,000 $14,000,000 $1,630,000

Expenditures 14,308,000 13,162,000 (1,115,000)

Ending Working Capital 6,462,000 9,238,000 2,776,000

Gambling Revolving Account

Other Revenue

Federal Seizure Funds $24,000

State Seizure Funds >1,000

Industrial Ins. Prem. Refund

Other Expenditures

Federal Seizure Funds 31,000



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

FY19 Budget

Revenue $11,106,000

Expenditures:

Gambling Revolving Acct. $14,253,000

Industrial Ins. Pre. Refund Acct. 25,000

Federal Seizure Acct. 33,000

Matching Funds for PG Study 50,000

Total $14,361,000

Approved July 12, 2018:

114 FTEs



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Revenue Estimates:  2019-21 Biennium

FY20 FY21 Total
Proposed August 2018 $13,476,000 $13,494,000 $26,970,000

These estimates use gross receipts reported by licensees for FY17 and full implementation of 
restructured fees.

Gambling Revolving Account



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Expenditure Estimates:

FY20 FY21 Total
Proposed August 2018 $14,998,000 $14,659,000 $29,657,000

114 FTEs

Current Plan Includes: FY20 FY21

Updating and integrating legacy computer systems $983,000 $534,000

Software and hardware upgrades 71,000 158,000

Updating vehicles in agency motor pool 264,000 363,000

Other Proposed Expenditures

Industrial Ins. Prem. Refund Acct. 25,000 25,000



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Working Capital Balance

Recommended Minimum Balance*: FY20 - $2,376,000; FY21 - $2,443,000
*OFM recommends maintaining working capital balance at no less than 60 days of estimated expenditures.

FY20 FY21 Total

Estimated Beginning Working Capital $6,091,000 $4,569,000

Plus: Estimated Revenue 13,476,000 13,494,000 26,970,000

Total Available * $19,567,000 $18,063,000

Less: Estimated Expenditures 14,998,000 14,659,000 29,657,000

Expected Ending Working Capital $4,569,000 $3,404,000

Gambling Revolving Account



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Staff Recommendation

FY20 FY21 Total
Revenue $13,476,000 $13,494,000 $26,970,000

Expenditures:

Gambling Revolving Acct. $14,998,000 $14,659,000 $29,657,000

Industrial Ins. Pre. Refund Acct. 25,000 25,000 50,000

Approve 2019-21 Biennium Budget:

114 FTEs



Questions?



STATE OF WASHINGTON 
GAMBLING COMMISSION

“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

TO: COMMISSIONERS  EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
Bud Sizemore, Chair   Senator Steve Conway 
Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair Senator Lynda Wilson 
Christopher Stearns  Representative Brandon Vick 
Ed Troyer Representative David Sawyer 
Alicia Levy 

FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  

SUBJECT:  Sports Gambling Monthly Update – August 2018 

In June and July, I provided you a memo containing an overview of sports gambling as this issue 
develops across the country.  I will continue to provide this overview each month with updated 
information, as needed. At our August Commission Meeting, I will have a PowerPoint 
presentation discussing pertinent terms, the history and mechanics of a sports gambling operation 
along with the regulatory and policy issues likely to be raised should our state Legislature look to 
authorize a partial or full spectrum of sports gambling activities.   

Below is an updated sports gambling summary within the U.S. as of August 1, 2018:  

Congress 

There is no new information related to Congress at this time.  

Sports Leagues 

Professional sports leagues (NBA, NFL, NHL, MLB, and PGA) continue to advocate for a 
uniform regulatory model, integrity or royalty fees, and control over the sharing of their statistics 
and data. Recently, MLB Commissioner Rob Manfred continued his hard line with state 
legislatures and regulators.  In a series of interviews during the MLB’s All-Star break, Mr. 
Manfred stated “we need laws…that will allow us to protect the integrity of our sport.  We’re not 
going to delegate it to some regulator…. We care more about [integrity].  It’s what we’re about.” 
However, he also admitted that the leagues will benefit from legalized gambling stating: “fan 
engagement can be improved through gaming. People are more interested in the sport, they 
consume more of the sport. You want to take advantage of that opportunity without letting 
gaming become too intrusive [to their games].” 

Additionally, The NBA announced on July 31st that it has reached an agreement for MGM 
Resorts International to be the league’s “official gaming partner.”  This is a non-exclusive 
agreement that is reported by ESPN to be a 3-year, approximately $25 million deal.  According 
to NBA Commissioner Adam Silver, this establishes a commercial relationship that compensates 
the league for its intellectual property and official data.  For MGM, the deal allows it to use 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
August 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
league and team logos at any MGM facility and NBA logos and league highlights can appear on 
any mobile gambling platform, if allowed, both will be a first for a Las Vegas operator.  
 
Lastly, the NCAA issued a press release stating they are forming an internal workgroup of 
subject matter experts to “explore how best to protect game integrity, monitor betting activity, 
manage sports data, and expand educational efforts.”  The NCAA will “focus its attention on the 
substance of education, the protection of student-athletes and a standard approach to game 
integrity through consistent national guidelines.”  Conferences and individual member schools 
are still able to try and address integrity/royalty fees and other revenue opportunities with state 
legislators or commercial sports gambling operators, if they choose. 
 
States 
 
Delaware and New Jersey are still the only two new states currently offering sports gambling 
within their state casinos and horse racetracks.  Rhode Island, Mississippi, and West Virginia are 
each expected to have their new operations begin in the upcoming weeks, but all expect to be in 
place prior to football season.  It is still unclear if Pennsylvania or New York will have 
operations underway in the near future.  Additional state being mentioned as the “next wave” of 
states that could authorize sports gambling during their next legislative session are: Colorado, 
Iowa, Ohio, Michigan, and Virginia.  Here is an update of where some states are at:  
 

Delaware – The state Lottery is the primary regulator.  Sports gambling is only offered 
at three land-based racetracks and casinos, and these are joint operations by the state 
through a vendor.  The allocation of net revenues are 12.5% to the vendors (Scientific 
Games, William Hill, and StadiumTech) and the remaining 87.5% of net revenues are 
allocated 50% to the state, 40% to the racetrack/casinos, and 10% to horse racing 
purses. The state’s first monthly revenue report by the state was for the first 20 days 
and it showed 69,698 wagers for approximately $7 million wagered and $6 million 
paid out in winnings.  The $1,000,247 in net revenues were divided as follows: 
$125,031 to the vendors; $352,255 to the racetrack/casinos; and $437,609 to the state; 
and $85,352 to the horse racing purses. The Legislature will likely consider 
mobile/online authorizing in upcoming legislative sessions. 
 
Michigan – The Gaming Control Board would be the primary regulator. The state 
Senate is expected to take up a bill passed by the House once it adjourns after the 
state legislature’s summer recess ends.  The bill authorizes land-based, mobile, and 
online sports gambling.  Gross revenues would be taxed at 10%. 
 
Mississippi – The Gaming Commission is primary regulator, and it has issued 
regulations for its licensed land and water-based casinos, including mobile wagering 
allowed on a casino’s property.  One commercial operator began offering sports 
gambling on August 1st and the remaining operators are expected to open their sports 
gambling operations over the upcoming weeks prior to the beginning of football 
season. Gross revenues are taxed at 12%. 
 
 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
August 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

New Jersey – The Casino Control Commission is the primary licensing authority and 
Attorney General’s Division of Gaming Enforcement (DGE) is the primary regulator.  
DGE has issued sports gambling regulations for its licensed land-based casinos who 
can also offer mobile and internet sports gambling. Currently, there are six land-based 
operations, but some operators expect to offer a mobile product in the upcoming days.  
Land-based gross revenues are taxed at 8.5% and online revenues are taxed at 13%.  
There is an additional 1.25% local tax authorized to support state licensed horse 
racetracks. The state’s first monthly revenue report was released for the first 17 days 
of operations at the three open land-based operators.  The report showed $16.4 
million wagered; $3.4 million in gross revenue; and $289,000 in state tax revenue. 
 
New York – The Gaming Commission is the primary regulator and has recently 
stated it is still drafting regulations for its land-based commercial casinos.  It is 
unclear when the regulations will be issued or when commercial casino sports 
gambling operations may begin. Gross revenues would be taxed at 8.25%.  
 
Nevada – The Gaming Control Board recently issued a notice to its industry 
indicating the agency was reviewing its sports gambling regulations in light of 
PASPA being found unconstitutional.  Licensees and interested parties were ask to 
provide comments on proposed changes to the state’s sports gambling regulations.  
Comments are due no later than August 6, 2018. 
 
Oregon – The state Lottery would be the primary regulator and it continues to review 
how it can offer a full range of sports gambling products under its current retail 
system and through an internet/mobile platform.  If it looks to offer its sports 
gambling products through retail and mobile/internet, then could be the first state to 
consider a retail model similar to that found in the United Kingdom or Australia. 
However, there are no proposed sports gambling regulations at this time. 
 
Pennsylvania – The Gaming Control Board is the primary regulator and expects to 
issue temporary rules on August 15, 2018.  Sports gambling can occur at the state’s 
twelve licensed commercial casinos and through mobile and internet platforms.  No 
operators have applied for a sports gambling license at this time likely due to the $10 
million licensing fee and gross revenue tax of 36%.  However, one casino recently 
announced it is moving forward with an operator to offer land-based and online sports 
gambling, which signals that the first application may be forthcoming.   
 
Rhode Island – The state Lottery is the primary regulator and will work in partnership 
with the operators.  Currently, two commercial casinos will offer sports gambling.  
The state lottery will operate the sports gambling through these casinos and they 
expect to start offering their products by October 1, 2018.  The allocation of net 
revenues are 51% to the state; 32% to the Vendor (IGT); and 17 % to the casino. 
 
West Virginia – The state Lottery is the primary regulator and it is finalizing its sports 
gambling rules for its five licensed race racetrack/casinos.  The Lottery expects 
regulations to be in place by September 1, 2018, and reports are that all five 



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
August 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

racetrack/casinos are preparing to open in September. Gross revenues are taxed at 
10%. 

 
Tribal Governments 
 
Nationally, the National Indian Gaming Association (NIGA) and Tribal governments throughout 
the country continue to analyze legal and policy implications of authorizing sports gambling, and 
continue to review their operations to determine if sports gambling is a viable amenity for their 
casinos.  We continue to watch Connecticut, Michigan, Mississippi, and New York to see how 
these states’ navigate their gaming compact processes and the potential challenges caused by the 
Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA) when states look to authorize mobile and/or internet 
sports gambling.   
 
Additionally, I have attached a recent article published by Global Gaming Business Magazine.  
The article provides an overview of the Tribal gaming industry’s view of sports gambling, and 
includes a few quotes from our esteemed Commissioner Stearns. 
 
Lastly, I attended a sports gambling panel at the July Northwest Indian Gaming Conference.  The 
panel included Commissioner Stearns and was very well-attended.  The discussion covered the 
potential benefits and challenges of adding sports gambling to current Tribal operations.  My 
takeaway was that there is still a lot of conversation and analysis that will likely need to happen 
before Tribes can determine how sports gambling fits into their operations, if at all. 
 
Commercial Operators 
 
William Hill, MGM, Caesars, DraftKings, Paddy Power Betfair/FanDuel, International Gaming 
Technology (IGT) continue to position themselves in the new regulated sports gambling markets.   
 
The Meadowlands Racetrack in New Jersey partnered with FanDuel and opened its FanDuel 
sports book on July 14th.  Its sports book is in the shadow of MetLife Stadium where the NFL 
New York Giants and Jets play their home games.  It has reported that it took in a little under 
$3.5 million in wagers during the first 9 days of operation.  
 
Golden Nugget has partnered with SBTech, an international provider of sports gambling 
products and services.  Golden Nugget will integrate SBTech’s sports gambling platform and 
products into its New Jersey land-based and online operations and at its Mississippi land-based 
operations. SBTech also has partnered with Resorts Casino (New Jersey) and Churchill Downs, 
Inc. (New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Mississippi) to integrate its sports gambling platform and 
products into the company’s land-based and/or online casino operations. 
 
DraftKings Sportsbook had previously announced a partnership with Resorts Casino (above), 
which is allowed because New Jersey casinos can have multiple online operators.  On August 1st, 
DraftKings Sportsbook began offering its mobile/online sports gambling product through Resorts 
Casino’s online license.  DraftKings may be the first operator to offer a mobile sports gambling 
product, and it appears to be working closely with regulators to offer as many sports gambling 
options as possible while attempting to integrate its fantasy sports products and accounts into one 
sports gambling mobile application.  



Sports Gambling Monthly Update to Commissioners 
August 2018 
Page 5 
 
 
 
 
Caesar’s Entertainment announced that it will use Scientific Games, Inc.’s sports betting 
platform at its properties. Its three Atlantic City casinos will offer land-based gambling by 
August 1st and its mobile platform will be available throughout New Jersey in the upcoming 
weeks. It will also open sports gambling operations at its two Mississippi casinos by mid-August.    
 
MGM Resorts International owns numerous casino properties in Las Vegas and around the 
country and it made several big announcements in addition to its new NBA partnership.  MGM 
is partnering with Boyd Gaming Corporation, an operator with several Las Vegas properties and 
additional properties across the country. Their partnership will allow each company the 
opportunity to offer online and mobile casino gaming, poker, and sports gambling platforms at 
each company’s properties in the 15 states where one or both have gambling licenses. 
 
MGM also is partnering with GVC Holdings PLC, a large U.K. operator, to create a “world-class 
sports betting and online gaming platform in the United States.”  Each company has committed 
$100 million to the joint-venture.  Once the new platform is created, it will be the exclusive 
platform for all of MGM’s land-based and online casinos, including sports gambling its 
operations. 
 
MGM also opened new sports gambling operations on August 1st at two of its Mississippi 
casinos and announced its Atlantic City casino would begin offering sports gambling through its 
mobile application by August 3rd or 4th. 
 
Lastly, Dover Downs Gaming & Entertainment, Inc. and Twin River Worldwide Holdings, Inc. 
announced their merger with Twin River assuming control of the new company.  Dover Downs 
operates one of the three Delaware casinos offering sports gambling and Twin Rivers operates 
the only two Rhode Island casinos offering sports gambling and a casino in Mississippi. 
 



Sports Betting
August 9, 2018
Brian Considine, Legal & Legislative 
Manager
Legal & Records Unit



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 2



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 3



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 4

Types of Sports Wagers

POINT SPREAD

Seattle Seahawks
-3  -110 -150 U 34.5  -110

Indianapolis Colts
+3  -110 +130 O 34.5  -110



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 5

Types of Sports Wagers

MONEY LINE

Seattle Seahawks
-3  -110 -150 U 34.5  -110

Indianapolis Colts
+3  -110 +130 O 34.5  -110



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 6

Types of Sports Wagers

OVER/UNDER

Seattle Seahawks
-3  -110 -150 U 34.5  -110

Indianapolis Colts
+3  -110 +130 O 34.5  -110



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 7

Types of Sports Wagers

FUTURES

Super Bowl
NCAA Basketball Tournament
World Series
Stanley Cup



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 8

Types of Sports Wagers

PARLAY

Single bet w/ 2+ wagers
Must win all wagers in parlay
Higher payoff than individual 
bets



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 9



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 10



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 11



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 12

In-Game Wagering
Actively wagering on an 
event while it is in progress

Ex: The favorite gets down 
early in the 1st qtr. The line 
shrinks in favor of the 
underdog. Bet prices change.

Includes prop bets
Ex: Wager on whether a drive 
will lead to touchdown, field 
goal, punt or turnover



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 13

Pari-mutuel Betting



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 14

Sports Betting Terms
Action – A sports wager of any kind: a bet.
Book – An establishment that accepts bets on the outcome of 
sporting events.
Cover – Winning by more than the point spread.
Favorite – The team considered most likely to win an event.
Future – Odds that are posted well in advance on the winner 
of major events, including the Pro Football Championship, the 
Pro Basketball Championship and the Pro Baseball 
Championship.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 15

Sports Betting Terms
Handle – The total amount of bets taken.
Hold – The percentage the house wins.
Juice/Vig – The bookmaker’s commission, most commonly the 
11 to 10 bettors lay on straight point spread wagers
Line – The current odds or point spread on a particular event.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 16

Sports Gambling History

• Horse racing 
popular; off-
track 
poolrooms

Late 1800s

• Professional 
sports increase 
in popularity: 
esp. baseball

Early 1900s
• “Black Sox” 

scandal; White 
Sox threw 
World Series

1919



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 17

Sports Gambling History

• Pari-mutuel 
betting on horse 
racing authorized 
in WA State

1933

• Point spread 
becomes popular 
in sports books

1940s
• “Minneapolis 

line” distributed 
to bookies across 
the country

1930s-1960s



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 18

Sports Gambling History

• Nevada 
legalizes sports 
gambling

1949

• Congress 
passes 10% tax 
on handle

1951 • Federal Wire 
Act

1961



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 19

Sports Gambling History

• Sports Bribery 
Act

1964

• Illegal 
Gambling and 
Business Act

1970 • WA amends 
constitution; 
allows 
gambling

1973



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 20

Sports Gambling History

• Congress 
reduces handle 
tax to 2%

1974

• Montana 
offers sports 
pools

1974 • Nevada allows 
casinos to have 
sports books

1975



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 21

Sports Gambling History

• Delaware 
offers 3-team 
parlays for NFL 
games

1976

• WA authorizes 
sports pools 
(boards)

1976 • Congress 
reduces handle 
tax to 0.25%

1984



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 22

Sports Gambling History

• Oregon Lottery 
offers “Sports 
Action” parlay 
system for NFL

1989

• PASPA

1992 • WA authorizes 
off-track 
betting on 
horse racing

2004



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 23

Sports Gambling History

• WA authorizes 
advanced deposit 
wagering on horse 
racing

2005

• Unlawful Internet 
Gambling 
Enforcement Act

2006 • WSGC looks at 
amending sports 
pool laws to add 
bracket pools & 
fantasy leagues

2006-07



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 24

Sports Gambling History

• Oregon 
Legislature ends 
state’s sports 
gambling

2007

• Delaware re-
authorizes NFL 
parlay wagering

2009 • Nevada 
authorizes 
mobile sports 
gambling

2010



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 25

Sports Gambling History

• New Jersey 
amends sports 
gambling laws

2012

• New Jersey 
amends laws 
again

2014 • Supreme Court 
takes up New 
Jersey’s 2nd

case

2016



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 26

Sports Gambling History

2018
PASPA held 

unconstitutional



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 27

Christie v. NCAA, et al. & NJ Thoroughbred Horsemen’s Assoc. v. NCAA, et al.

Federal Law: Precluded states and tribes from authorizing, offering or 
conducting sports wagering and prohibited anyone from operating a sports 
gambling business under state or tribal law, unless the state was grandfathered 
in 1992

Supreme Court: May 2018 -- PASPA is unconstitutional because the Tenth 
Amendment prevents federal govt from requiring states to enforce federal laws 
or policies. Congress can pass a federal law prohibiting or regulating sports 
betting, but can’t direct states to enforce the law

Effect:  States may authorize or continue to prohibit sports gambling.

PASPA Ruling



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 28

Illegal Gambling Business Act

Federal crime to violate state gambling laws in interstate 
commerce if the activity involves 5 or more people who 
conduct, operate, finance, manage, supervise or own the 
business and the business is used in continuous 
operation for 30 days or has $2,000 or more in revenue in 
a single day

Used during Black Friday operation



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 29

Unlawful Internet Gambling Enforcement Act

Assists states by making it a federal crime to violate state law 
and run an illegal gambling business in interstate commerce

Identifies operators and financial institutions to prohibit 
accepting credit, electronic fund transfers, checks or any 
other payment involving a financial institution to settle 
unlawful internet gambling debts



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 30

Wire Act
• Applies to sports gambling
• Ensures sports gambling is a state-by-state activity
• All sports gambling operations must be intrastate; prohibits 

all interstate and foreign communications and transactions
• Not subordinate to state law; does not require a predicate 

state law offense
• A bet is an agreement subject to the laws of each 

jurisdiction in which the bettor is located, the bet is offered, 
and the best is accepted and recorded.



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 31

Washington State Law
Laws currently on the books (applicable to sports betting)

• Constitution: Article 2, Section 24 – 60% vote for new activities
• RCW 67.04.010 – Penalty for bribery in relations to baseball game
• RCW 67.04.020 – Penalty for accepting a bribe
• RCW 67.04.050 – Corrupt baseball playing
• RCW 67.24 – Fraud in a sporting contest
• Gambling Act

RCW 9.46.0335 – Sports pools authorized
RCW 9.46.220 - .225 – Professional gambling statutes
RCW 9.46.240 – Prohibition on transmitting or receiving gambling information 
via Internet and other electronic means



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 32

Horse Racing

Advance-Deposit 
Wagering
6 operators licensed by WHRC

Player funds acct & bets in-
person, by phone or Internet 
using wire transfer

In-state & out-of-state races



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 33

Horse Racing

Off-track
Pari-mutuel betting
One location per county

13 locations – tribal casinos & 
commercial card rooms

Simulcasts for in-state & out-of-
state races



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 34

Source: Eilers & Krejcik Gaming, LLC



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 35

STATE REGULATORY AGENCY TAXES AUTHORIZED METHODS

Delaware State Lottery Net revenues to be divided:
Vendor: 12.5%; 50% of remainder to State, 40% to 
casinos, 10% to horse racing purses

Land-based (operating)

Nevada Gaming Control Board 6.75% of gross revenues Land-based (operating)

Mobile (operating)

New Jersey Gaming Control Board Land based: 8.5% of gross revenues
Online: 13% of gross revenues
1.25% local tax

Land-based (operating)

Mobile (authorized)

Operating States



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 36

STATE REVENUE TAXES COLLECTED OPERATORS

Delaware June 5 - 24: $1 million net revenue

June 25 – July 29: $520,000 net revenue

June 5 - 24: $437,609 to the state

June 25 – July 29: $230k to the state

3 locations

Nevada 2017: $248.8 million gross revenue

June 2018: $20.1 million gross revenue

2017: $16.7 million to the state

June 2018: $1.35 million to the state

189 locations

New Jersey First 17 Days: $3.4 million gross revenue First 17 Days: $289,000 to the state 6 locations
DraftKings offering 
mobile/Internet wagering

State Revenues



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 37

STATE REGULATORY AGENCY TAXES STATUS

Mississippi Gaming Commission 12% of gross revenues 2 MGM casinos set to open

William Hill to open 11 books by end of 
August

Oregon State Lottery Undetermined Lottery has authority to offer sports 
gambling; no new laws needed

Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board $10 million licensing fee
36% of gross revenues

12 licensed facilities authorized

Parx (Philadelphia) announced 
partnership with London-based GAN

Rhode Island State Lottery Net revenues to be divided:
State: 51%; Vendor: 32%; Casino: 17%

2 casinos with books operated by state 
lottery to open by October 1

Will be run by William Hill and IGT

West Virginia State Lottery 10% of gross revenues 5 casinos authorized to operate

William Hill and FanDuel have announced 
partnerships

Near-Operating States



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 38

Oregon At-a-Glance
• Grandfathered under PASPA
• Lottery has regulatory jurisdiction over the state’s sports 

betting and has broad authority, as regulation is within 
the State’s Constitution.  No new laws are required

• Lottery has authority to offer sports gambling
• Looking at full range of sports gambling products under 

its current retail system and through an internet/mobile 
platform

• Nothing imminent 



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 39

Washington State Outlook

MODEL PROJECTED REVENUE*

Land-based only with strict licensing and locations $163,447,968

Land-based only with off-track betting locations and small operators $181,436,452

Land-based with restrictive online options $209,041,523

*Projections do not include revenue from tourism
Source: Eilers & Krejcik Gaming, LLC



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 40

Washington State Outlook

CURRENT TAX CODE
All local except for B&O tax on games of chance

Gambling Act: Local jurisdictions set gambling tax
Punchboards/Pull-tabs: up to 5% gross receipts or 10% net receipts
Card Rooms: up to 20% gross receipts

B&O Rate
Games of chance: 1.62% gross receipts

*Projections do not include revenue from tourism
Source: Eilers & Krejcik Gaming, LLC



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 41

Stakeholders

Legislature Tribes Operators

Lottery Horse 
Racing

Sports 
Leagues

Behavioral 
Health Media Data 

Companies



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 42

Sports Leagues
Integrity Fees

• Based on handle
• 1% initially; recently 0.25% 

in NY
• Goes to leagues; comes out 

of state revenue
• Leagues: will go toward 

increased integrity 
protection costs

• Now being promoted as fair 
payment for intellectual 
property

Data

• Possibly more important 
issue for leagues

• Data for sportsbooks is 
currently competitively 
priced

• Leagues want books to buy 
data directly from them

• If leagues are only source 
of data, they control prices

MGM-NBA Deal

• Non-exclusive; 3 years; $25 
million

• Compensates league for 
intellectual property and 
data

• Allows MGM to use league 
and team logos

• Deal struck without 
legislative intervention



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 43

Tribes
• Sports pool/board law incorporated in tribal compacts

• Incorporated as Class III activity 

• Change to state law could necessitate changes to all 
compacts

• Work closely with Tribal Gaming Agencies setting up new 
regulatory structures

• Nationwide discussion: Compatibility between IGRA and 
mobile/internet sports gambling



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 44

• Product expertise or ability to partner with a larger operator

• Customer volume – database size

• Resources – can assume the risk of operating a book

• Current licensee or will need to be licensed

• Political support – state/local government approval

Operators



WASHINGTON STATE GAMBLING COMMISSION 45

Regulatory Considerations

• WSGC
• Lottery
• Horse Racing

State
Regulator

• Land-based
• Mobile
• Internet

Betting 
Method

• Tribal/commercial 
casinos/horse tracks

• Small retailers
• Online retailers

Operators

• Standard sports
• Local college games
• Player credit

Gambling 
Events



Questions?
Brian Considine, Legal & Legislative 
Manager
Legal and Records Unit



GGB 
Global Gaming Business Magazine 
 
July 25, 2018 
Virtual Indian Country 
Sports move regulatory debate to online, mobile 

By David Palermo 

 
 

Much of the American Indian casino industry is at least temporarily opting out of sports 
betting, discouraged at the anticipated low profit margins and rebuffed by federal and 
state regulatory and legislative hurdles required to take wagers on college and 
professional sports. 

But the debate surrounding sports betting is accelerating efforts to advance tribal 
government casinos from traditional gambling to internet and mobile technology, a 
transition believed necessary to generate interest from a younger generation of 
customers. 

“This certainly ramps up the conversation of what comes next in the evolution of gaming 
in Indian Country,” says Billy David, an Oregon Klamath and spokesman for the Tribal 
Alliance, a consortium of some 40 tribal regulatory commissions. 

“This is a defining time for tribal gaming. How do we properly move forward?” 

Not more than a few of 240 tribes operating government casinos in 29 states are 
expressing interest in operating sports books, a costly, risky endeavor that generates a 
marginal profit. 



“No, not at this point in time,” says Debbie Thundercloud, chief of staff for the National 
Indian Gaming Association (NIGA), the industry trade and lobby group. 

Sports wagering’s impact on Indian gambling nationwide, which saw a 3.9 percent growth 
in 2017 to $32.4 billion, will be minimal, she says. 

“I don’t believe it will have a significant impact, economically, on tribal gaming,” says 
Thundercloud, a Wisconsin Oneida. “The margins are so small.” 

“The reality is there’s not a lot of money in sports betting, from the operator’s perspective,” 
agrees a tribal gambling industry official who requested anonymity. “It’s just not there.” 

 National Campaign 

A nationwide initiative to repeal the Professional and Amateur Sports Protection Act 
(PASPA) by the American Gaming Association (AGA)—a lobby and trade group largely 
for commercial casinos—generated moderate support from tribes operating 500 casinos 
in 29 states. 

Tribes saw a need to partner with AGA, despite being aware the legal and regulatory 
constraints of federal law and tribal-state regulatory agreements would make it difficult for 
tribes to embrace sports betting as an expansion of tribal casinos. 

“We saw a need to engage in this emerging industry,” NIGA Chairman Ernie Stevens told 
the group’s annual conference. “There is no one size fits all and policymakers need to 
hear from the Indian gaming industry. 

“The unlawful (sports betting) market continues to thrive, 20 states are considering sports 
betting bills and the train is moving quickly,” Stevens said. 

But the economics of sports betting and the regulatory and legal obstacles for the tribes 
have, indeed, been problematic. 

“I’m not faulting AGA on picking up on sports betting. It’s a big issue,” says an industry 
official who requested anonymity. 

“But this has been their issue,” the official says of AGA and commercial casinos. “The 
reality is it doesn’t have much effect on the tribes.” 

Sports betting legislation has been introduced in 19 states, most with commercial casinos. 
The bills have found most success in states with few or no Indian tribes. 

But the momentum created by the movement to legalize sports betting—accelerated by 
the May U.S. Supreme Court decision declaring PASPA to be unconstitutional—is 
pressuring tribal leaders, regulators and casino operators to make preparations for online 
and mobile wagering. 

“The sports betting debate is definitely triggering more discussion about the internet,” 
Thundercloud says. 



“You have to concede that’s a transition that is going to happen, eventually,” agrees Chris 
Stearns, a Navajo and chairman of the Washington State Gaming Commission. “It’s the 
wave of the future.” 

The Tribal Alliance has drafted minimal internal operating controls (MICs) and technical 
standards—largely focused on skill-based gaming—to assist tribes in making the 
eventual transition from traditional gambling to mobile and internet play. 

That transition will likely include wagering on sports and other games on—and eventually 
off—the casino property. 

 Indians Online 

Seven categories of iGaming the alliance is working on, suggested by NIGA leadership, 
include social and real-money platforms and sports wagering. A dozen tribes already 
operate social gambling websites. A few tribes operate real-money sites as commercial 
ventures. 

“That’s how the birth of the Tribal Alliance came about,” David says. “We’ve got to be 
prepared to regulate. If we, as regulators, aren’t ready, we’re going to be stifling the 
industry’s growth. 

“We’re relying on experts in the tribal realm to come forward and provide their expertise,” 
David says, particularly in the case of smaller, rural tribal casinos on impoverished 
reservations lacking the resources and technology to cope with the onset of iGaming. 

The National Tribal Gaming Commissioners/Regulators (NTGCR), a larger coalition of 
tribal gambling regulators, is also exploring the impact sports and internet wagering will 
have on the indigenous casino industry. 

“This is going to force all of us—NIGA, NCTCR, our tribal leadership—to put together 
some positions and talk about what this means to tribes,” says Jamie Hummingbird, 
NCTCR chairman and director of the Cherokee Nation Gaming Commission. “We’re still 
in that regrouping phase. We’re still trying to figure out how this is all going to work.” 

“We’re not talking simply about sports betting, we’re talking about internet gaming,” says 
Joe Valandra, a Rosebud Sioux and former chief of staff for the National Indian Gaming 
Commission (NIGC). “We’re talking about mobile gaming, which is vital for any big-time 
success of sports betting. 

“If you can’t do mobile even inside your property, you’re really limiting any opportunity to 
make money. I’m not sure everybody sees it that way, or they don’t want to talk about it.” 

Meanwhile, state and tribal governments are wrestling with the legal and regulatory 
minefield as states move to enact legislation to legalize betting on college and 
professional sports. 

Sports Betting Legislation can be Problematic 

Tribal casinos dominate the gambling industries in several states, notably California, New 
York, Oklahoma, Arizona, New Mexico, Connecticut, Washington, Minnesota, Michigan, 
Wisconsin, Oregon, Alabama and Florida. 



Enacting sports betting legislation in states with commercial casinos, racetracks, card 
rooms, lotteries and other forms of gambling taxed and regulated by the states is relatively 
simple. But crafting legislation in states with tribal government gambling can be 
complicated. 

Tribes operate casinos under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act (IGRA), which limits 
types of games tribes can operate on Indian lands. Permissible games are defined by 
tribal-state regulatory agreements, or compacts, required under IGRA. Compact terms 
vary dramatically from one state to another. 

Compacts in many states provide tribes with casino exclusivity in exchange for giving the 
state a share of gambling revenues. To operate sports books, tribes and states need to 
negotiate amendments to the compacts, an often politically problematic process. 

States seeking to extend sports betting to lotteries and commercial vendors risk violating 
exclusivity provisions in the tribal-state compacts and losing their share of tribal casino 
revenues. 

And states seeking tax revenues from sports gambling are confronted with federal law 
that generally prohibits taxation of tribal government gambling revenues. 

Adding to the confusion is the fact IGRA limits gambling to Indian trust lands. There 
remains legal uncertainty over the ability of tribes to accept wagers from outside 
reservation boundaries. Sports betting bills in several states include mobile and internet 
provisions. 

The Wire Act and Unlawful Internet Gaming Enforcement Act (UIGEA) prohibit the 
transmission of wagers across state lines. But tribes are exempt from UIGEA. If 
compacted sports betting is declared legal on tribal reservations in several states, they 
can share markets. 

Many tribes are contemplating operating sports betting as a commercial venture, taxed 
and regulated by the states, rather than gambling under IGRA and federal Indian law. 

Sports betting bills in New York, Louisiana, Michigan, Oklahoma, Connecticut and 
elsewhere were blocked at the 11th hour over the legal complexities involved with tribal 
gambling. 

Some trade industry writers blame tribes for the inability to get legislation through state 
houses. But in most cases it was the fault of legislators uninformed about IGRA and 
federal Indian law. 

“It’s the ignorance of those who sit in state legislatures,” Thundercloud says. “They just 
don’t understand the compacts they’ve entered into with tribes and the terms and 
conditions of those compacts.” 

“Legislators don’t talk to tribes until the very end,” Valandra says. “Tribes do have 
leverage because in many of the states tribes are making payments pursuant to the 
compacts. When states realize what they have to lose, things get put on hold. 



“If the drafters of legislation were aware of the need to comply with federal law… things 
might go smoother. That’s how it works. Tribal governments, as well as state 
governments, have an interest to protect.” 

Sports betting bills are expected to be successful in New York and Connecticut, where 
the Mashantucket Pequot and Mohegan tribes dominate the casino market. Both tribes 
also operate online gambling. 

Tribes in Arizona and Oklahoma are expected to include sports betting in negotiating 
compacts soon to expire, although only a few of the tribes are expected to operate distinct 
books. Tribes are expected to demand casino exclusivity provisions over sports wagering. 

Tribes in California, the Midwest and the Great Plains are pushing back on sports betting 
because of political, economic, legal and regulatory issues, including favorable compact 
terms they don’t wish to renegotiate. 

But public demand for sport wagering—promoted by betting operations such as 
DraftKings and FanDuel—may pressure state and tribal governments to push for online 
and mobile gambling. 

Jake Williams, general counsel for the U.S. branch of Sportradar, a European sports data 
and integrity company, told the Eagle-Tribune it’s important for states and companies to 
understand what consumers want. 

“Everything in general, not just in sports betting but all sports industries, is shifting toward 
that real-time, instant gratification,” he said. “If you can’t have that offering, people are 
going to go to someone who does.” 

 An Industry Prepared for Sports Betting 

Tribal governments have primacy for regulating Indian casinos, spending in excess of 
$320 million a year on commissions employing some 5,900 auditors and agents. 

The industry is also subject to oversight and co-regulation by the NIGC, state offices and 
the federal Treasury Department. 

Indigenous governments with the onset of early gambling and enactment of IGRA in 1988 
relied on expertise from the commercial segment of the industry to help operate and 
regulate their casinos. 

Tribes now have their own specialists who are expected to guide the industry through the 
evolution of sports betting and internet and mobile gambling. 

“When you look at Indian gaming today—2018 compared to 1991 and before—it’s come 
a long way,” says a tribal regulatory specialist who requested anonymity. “Tribes once 
turned to the experience of commercial gaming people to bring expertise to Indian 
Country. But over the years, tribes have built their own expertise and talents. Many tribes 
today have the technical expertise. 

“I really feel over the last two years tribes have been getting educated about this topic,” 
the specialist says of sports and internet gambling. “It’s been coming up more and more 
at the conferences. And it’s starting to dominate the conferences. 



“Tribes are very cognizant of what’s coming. They’re very aware of the future. They’re 
very able to bring their expertise to the table and draft the documents and ordinances 
necessary to do the job.” 

Regulating sports betting is not a complicated endeavor. 

“It’s an easy business to regulate,” says Richard Schuetz, a veteran industry executive 
and regulator. “It’s actually cleaner than table games. You hand somebody cash and they 
hand you a receipt.” 

“Actually I don’t think it’s going to be that difficult,” Hummingbird says. “A lot of the 
regulatory pieces are in place already. 

“There are things you’re going to have to beef up on from the technology side,” he says, 
including geolocation and identity security for online and mobile gambling. 

“The big thing is getting technology put in place and getting people trained in the 
technology.” 

“It’s not all that complicated,” says Norm DesRosiers, a regulatory consultant and former 
member of the NIGC. “It’s all in the totalizers, the betting equipment. You get the right IT 
people in there with the right technology, it’s all pretty simple. 

“My feeling is tribes are not going to reinvent the wheel,” DesRosiers says. “They’re 
probably going to look at New Jersey and Nevada models for regulating sports betting 
when the time comes. 

“Tribes that are serious about it are going to hire experts in doing sports betting, and that 
could be experts from anywhere from Las Vegas to Europe. They’re going to bring in 
people with experience. They’re not going to do it themselves. 

“How it’s going to be regulated is going to depend on how it’s legislated,” DesRosiers 
says, largely whether tribes will retain exclusivity and operate sports betting under IGRA. 
Some states may require tribes to operate commercially, taxed and regulated by states. 

“All of these are unanswered questions,” he says. 

NIGC has limited jurisdiction over Class III casino gambling, which most legal authorities 
believe includes sports betting. The federal agency has only mildly weighed in on the 
issue. 

“As federal regulators, we have learned firsthand that there is tangible benefit to having 
tribes, as primary regulators, driving decisions as how gaming will operate on their own 
lands,” the agency said in a release. 

As federal and state governments consider how to address sports betting, we anticipate 
tribes will be given a seat at the table to voice their positions, bring their perspectives and 
collective expertise and maintain regulatory and operational control over the gaming on 
their lands.” 

 States Need to Meet the Demand 



“From a regulatory standpoint, we can handle whatever the legislature puts in front of us,” 
Stearns says. 

But while there remains confidence in the tribal track record of gambling regulation, there 
is a concern states and the tribal and commercial industry will not keep pace with the 
evolution to internet and mobile sports wagering. 

“When you’re able to gamble on every play, by every player, of every game—from the 
phone, at the arena or from home—that’s something very different from what we’ve ever 
had,” says Keith Whyte, executive director of the National Council on Problem Gambling. 

“It’s a profoundly big and a profoundly risky expansion of gambling.” 

Whyte warns that state officials have not stressed regulations and problem gambling in 
their rush to legalize sports and internet gambling. A regulatory failure dealing with sports 
betting or internet gambling could seriously damage the industry. 

“The impact of technology on gaming has been profound, and it’s really been an impact 
on politics and policies,” Whyte says. “The greatest risk is that states, and perhaps some 
tribes, some operators, will screw things up and there will be a massive integrity scandal 
or problem gambling scandal. And all the hard-fought gains will be lost.” 

Although IGRA calls for tribes to enter into regulatory compacts with states, it’s the 
indigenous governments that have taken the lead on policing the casino industries, 
providing training and guidance to state agencies. 

And it’s tribal gambling—the largest segment of the nation’s legal casino industry—that 
will continue to lead the way as the nation evolves into sports and internet gambling. 

“If this thing is going to actually work, it’s not just going to be the commercial operators,” 
Hummingbird says. “It’s going to be the tribes. In a lot of ways, the tribes are going to be 
more heavy actors than the commercial operators. That’s the way I look at it. 

“We have this covered. Our policies are tried and true and have been in effect for years. 
We’ve got qualified people. Many are credentialed. We have former law enforcement 
people. We have technological people. We’ve got compliance people. 

“We’ve got this down.” 

 

Author: Dave Palermo 

Dave Palermo is an award-winning metropolitan newspaper reporter. He has written 
about American Indian governments for more than 20 years, working as an advocate for 
several tribes and tribal associations. He also has co-authored books on gambling and 
gambling law. He can be reached at dgpalermo1@gmail.com.  

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/h/11wjtv00zjkb5/?&v=b&cs=wh&to=dgpalermo@aol.com


 

 
STATE OF WASHINGTON 

GAMBLING COMMISSION 
“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest” 

 
August 1, 2018 
 
 
TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS  
         Bud Sizemore, Chair     Senator Steve Conway  
  Julia Patterson, Vice-Chair    Senator Lynda Wilson 
   Christopher Stearns    Representative Brandon Vick 
   Ed Troyer     Representative David Sawyer 
   Alicia Levy 
      
FROM:        Brian J. Considine, Legal and Legislative Manager  
 
SUBJECT:  Agency Request Legislation   
 
At our July 2018 commission meeting, we discussed six possible topics for agency request 
legislation.  The six topics were: (1) Problem Gambling Self-Exclusion Program; (2) Problem 
Gambling Task Force; (3) Problem Gambling Prevalence Study; (4) Skins/Loot Boxes; (5) 
Involuntary Exclusion from Gambling Establishments for People who Commit Certain Crimes or 
Acts (staff requested legislation); and (6) General Fund appropriation for Gambling 
Commission’s criminal enforcement activities. 
 
After our discussion, the consensus was to not file agency request legislation for the 2019 
legislative session. This decision was made to ensure that the agency had sufficient resources to 
address gambling topics that may come before the Legislature, including sports gambling, 
agency forfeitures, and definitions related to “thing of value” and gambling activities in general. 
Commissioner Patterson and Commissioner Levy were not present for the discussion, and we 
agreed that I would check-in with them on the six topics to see if they wished to move any of 
them forward during the 2019 legislative session.  If they wished to move any of them forward, I 
would bring those topics back for a final decision at our August Commission Meeting. 
 
I spoke with Commissioner Patterson and Commissioner Levy. Commissioner Patterson asked 
for the self-exclusion program to be agency request legislation this year due to the near success 
we had last year.  Commissioner Levy was also supportive of the self-exclusion program moving 
forward if there was a consensus to have it be agency request legislation.  
 
I have attached the self-exclusion program legislation with the House and Senate amendments 
made during the 2018 legislative session.  At our August meeting, I will check-in to ensure you 
wish to move it forward as agency request legislation.  I will also discuss what, if any, changes 
we could make to this bill prior to submitting it for your final approval at our September 
Commission Meeting. 



2332.E AMS LBRC S5370.1

 

EHB 2332 - S COMM AMD 
By Committee on Labor & Commerce

Strike everything after the enacting clause and insert the1
following:2

"Sec. 1.  RCW 9.46.071 and 2005 c 369 s 9 are each amended to3
read as follows:4

(1)(a) The legislature recognizes that some individuals in this5
state are problem or pathological gamblers. Because the state6
promotes and regulates gambling through the activities of the state7
lottery commission, the Washington horse racing commission, and the8
Washington state gambling commission, the state has the9
responsibility to continue to provide resources for the support of10
services for problem and pathological gamblers. Therefore, the11
Washington state gambling commission, the Washington horse racing12
commission, and the state lottery commission shall jointly develop13
informational signs concerning problem and pathological gambling14
which include a toll-free hotline number for problem and pathological15
gamblers. The signs shall be placed in the establishments of gambling16
licensees, horse racing licensees, and lottery retailers. In17
addition, the Washington state gambling commission, the Washington18
horse racing commission, and the state lottery commission may also19
contract with other qualified entities to provide public awareness,20
training, and other services to ensure the intent of this section is21
fulfilled.22

(b) The legislature finds that problem and pathological gambling23
continues to negatively impact individuals and families in this24
state. It is estimated that about five percent of adults in the state25
will experience problem or pathological gambling behaviors in their26
lifetime. Previous and ongoing efforts to prevent and assist people27
in treating problem and pathological gambling have proven beneficial,28
such as increasing public awareness, funding treatment services for29
individuals, and requiring informational signs in gambling30
establishments that include a toll-free hotline number for problem31

Code Rev/JA:lel 1 S-5370.1/18



and pathological gamblers. However, people and families facing1
problem or pathological gambling issues will further benefit from the2
availability of a uniform self-exclusion program where people may3
voluntarily exclude themselves from gambling at multiple gambling4
establishments by submitting one self-exclusion form to the state5
from one location. It is the intent of subsection (3) of this section6
to establish such a uniform self-exclusion program to assist people7
in preventing or ending problem or pathological gambling behaviors8
permanently.9

(2)(a) During any period in which RCW 82.04.285(2) is in effect,10
the commission may not increase fees payable by licensees under its11
jurisdiction for the purpose of funding services for problem and12
pathological gambling. Any fee imposed or increased by the13
commission, for the purpose of funding these services, before July 1,14
2005, ((shall have)) has no force and effect after July 1, 2005.15

(b) During any period in which RCW 82.04.285(2) is not in effect:16
(i) The commission, the Washington state horse racing commission,17

and the state lottery commission may contract for services, in18
addition to those authorized in subsection (1) of this section, to19
assist in providing for treatment of problem and pathological20
gambling; and21

(ii) The commission may increase fees payable by ((licenses22
[licensees])) licensees under its jurisdiction for the purpose of23
funding the services authorized in this section for problem and24
pathological gamblers.25

(3) By June 30, 2020, the commission must adopt rules26
establishing a self-exclusion program for problem and pathological27
gamblers. The commission has discretion in establishing the scope and28
requirements of the self-exclusion program. However, the program must29
include, at a minimum, the following:30

(a) A process for a person who believes the person is or may be a31
problem or pathological gambler to voluntarily exclude themselves32
from gambling at some or all gambling establishments licensed by the33
commission; and34

(b) A process for casinos owned or operated by Indian tribes or35
tribal enterprises to voluntarily participate in the self-exclusion36
program, so that ultimately a person who is or may be a problem or37
pathological gambler may self-exclude themselves from gambling at38
some or all casinos and state-licensed gambling establishments in the39

Code Rev/JA:lel 2 S-5370.1/18



state, no matter who owns or operates the casino or state-licensed1
gambling establishment, through a single request.2

(4)(a) The commission may not contract with a third party to3
administer the self-exclusion program created pursuant to this4
section.5

(b) Any personal information collected, stored, or accessed under6
the self-exclusion program created pursuant to this section may not7
be sold, monetized, or traded by the commission or any person or8
business authorized to access personal information through the9
program.10

(c) Any personal information collected, stored, or accessed under11
the self-exclusion program may not be used for any purpose other than12
the administration of the self-exclusion program.13

Sec. 2.  RCW 42.56.230 and 2017 3rd sp.s. c 6 s 222 are each14
amended to read as follows:15

The following personal information is exempt from public16
inspection and copying under this chapter:17

(1) Personal information in any files maintained for students in18
public schools, patients or clients of public institutions or public19
health agencies, or welfare recipients;20

(2)(a) Personal information:21
(i) For a child enrolled in licensed child care in any files22

maintained by the department of children, youth, and families;23
(ii) For a child enrolled in a public or nonprofit program24

serving or pertaining to children, adolescents, or students,25
including but not limited to early learning or child care services,26
parks and recreation programs, youth development programs, and after-27
school programs; or28

(iii) For the family members or guardians of a child who is29
subject to the exemption under this subsection (2) if the family30
member or guardian has the same last name as the child or if the31
family member or guardian resides at the same address as the child32
and disclosure of the family member's or guardian's information would33
result in disclosure of the personal information exempted under34
(a)(i) and (ii) of this subsection.35

(b) Emergency contact information under this subsection (2) may36
be provided to appropriate authorities and medical personnel for the37
purpose of treating the individual during an emergency situation;38

Code Rev/JA:lel 3 S-5370.1/18



(3) Personal information in files maintained for employees,1
appointees, or elected officials of any public agency to the extent2
that disclosure would violate their right to privacy;3

(4) Information required of any taxpayer in connection with the4
assessment or collection of any tax if the disclosure of the5
information to other persons would: (a) Be prohibited to such persons6
by RCW 84.08.210, 82.32.330, 84.40.020, 84.40.340, or any ordinance7
authorized under RCW 35.102.145; or (b) violate the taxpayer's right8
to privacy or result in unfair competitive disadvantage to the9
taxpayer;10

(5) Credit card numbers, debit card numbers, electronic check11
numbers, card expiration dates, or bank or other financial12
information as defined in RCW 9.35.005 including social security13
numbers, except when disclosure is expressly required by or governed14
by other law;15

(6) Personal and financial information related to a small loan or16
any system of authorizing a small loan in RCW 31.45.093;17

(7)(a)(i) Any record used to prove identity, age, residential18
address, social security number, or other personal information19
required to apply for a driver's license or identicard.20

(((b))) (ii) Information provided under RCW 46.20.111 that21
indicates that an applicant declined to register with the selective22
service system.23

(((c))) (iii) Any record pertaining to a vehicle license plate,24
driver's license, or identicard issued under RCW 46.08.066 that,25
alone or in combination with any other records, may reveal the26
identity of an individual, or reveal that an individual is or was,27
performing an undercover or covert law enforcement, confidential28
public health work, public assistance fraud, or child support29
investigative activity. This exemption does not prevent the release30
of the total number of vehicle license plates, drivers' licenses, or31
identicards that, under RCW 46.08.066, an agency or department has32
applied for, been issued, denied, returned, destroyed, lost, and33
reported for misuse.34

(((d))) (iv) Any record pertaining to a vessel registration35
issued under RCW 88.02.330 that, alone or in combination with any36
other records, may reveal the identity of an individual, or reveal37
that an individual is or was, performing an undercover or covert law38
enforcement activity. This exemption does not prevent the release of39
the total number of vessel registrations that, under RCW 88.02.330,40
Code Rev/JA:lel 4 S-5370.1/18



an agency or department has applied for, been issued, denied,1
returned, destroyed, lost, and reported for misuse.2

(b) Upon request by the legislature, the department of licensing3
must provide a report to the legislature containing all of the4
information in (a)(iii) and (iv) of this subsection (7) that is5
subject to public disclosure;6

(8) All information related to individual claims resolution7
structured settlement agreements submitted to the board of industrial8
insurance appeals under RCW 51.04.063, other than final orders from9
the board of industrial insurance appeals((.10

Upon request by the legislature, the department of licensing11
shall provide a report to the legislature containing all of the12
information in subsection (7)(c) and (d) of this section that is13
subject to public disclosure; and));14

(9) Voluntarily submitted information contained in a database15
that is part of or associated with enhanced 911 emergency16
communications systems, or information contained or used in emergency17
notification systems as provided under RCW 38.52.575 and 38.52.577;18
and19

(10) All information submitted by a person to the state, either20
directly or through a state-licensed gambling establishment or casino21
owned or operated by an Indian tribe or tribal enterprise, as part of22
the self-exclusion program established in RCW 9.46.071 for people who23
believe they are or may be a problem or pathological gambler.24

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 3.  This act takes effect July 1, 2018."25

EHB 2332 - S COMM AMD 
By Committee on Labor & Commerce

On page 1, line 1 of the title, after "addiction;" strike the26
remainder of the title and insert "amending RCW 9.46.071 and27
42.56.230; and providing an effective date."28

EFFECT: Modifies the requirement for the self-exclusion program
to include a process to self-exclude from some or all gambling
establishments and tribal casinos, where there is voluntary
participation by Indian tribes or tribal enterprises. Changes the

Code Rev/JA:lel 5 S-5370.1/18



method for self-exclusion to a single request, rather than submitting
one form at one location.

--- END ---

Code Rev/JA:lel 6 S-5370.1/18


	August Agenda
	Tab 1 amended minutes
	Tab1b License Report
	Tab 1c Strategic Report
	Tab 1d Director's Report
	Tab 2 Columbia Center Rotary
	Tab 3 Default
	Tab 4.pdf
	Memo
	Transcript
	Big Fish Petition
	Debbie Taylor comments
	Big Fish August comments
	Kater August comments
	Kelly August Comments 
	ESA August comments

	Tab 5 Budget Presentation
	Tab 6 Sports Betting Update
	Tab 6 Sports Betting Presentation
	Tab 7 Agency Request Legislation
	Tab 1d DIr Report.pdf
	“Protect the Public by Ensuring that Gambling is Legal and Honest”
	TO:          COMMISSIONERS    EX OFFICIO MEMBERS

	2018 Annual Technology Certification Requirements:

	ADPA208.tmp
	1) Jordan S. Hjorth, CR 2018-00405, Class III Employee Certification Revocation.




